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Toyota Finance Australia Limited ( TFA )

Annual Financial Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2012

TFA, was incorporated as a public company limited by shares in New South Wales,
Australia on 18 June 1982, operates under the Corporations Act 2001 of the
Commonwealth of Australia and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyota Financial
Services Corporation ( TFS ), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyota Motor
Corporation ( TMC ).

In this document, all references to TFA  are to Toyota Finance Australia Limited and
all references to the Group  or consolidated entity  are to the economic entity
comprising TFA, the entities it controls, and special purpose securitisation trusts which
it consolidates.

1. Management Report

(A) Review of the development and performance of the Group s business during the
financial year and the position of TFA and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole at the end of the financial year

References herein to fiscal 2012  denote the year ended March 31, 2012 and
references herein to fiscal 2011  denote the year ended March 31, 2011.

Profit from ordinary activities

The Group s earnings are primarily impacted by the level of average earning assets,
(comprised primarily of investments in finance receivables and operating leases),
earning asset yields, outstanding borrowings and the related borrowing cost and the
impact of credit losses and impairment of residual values.

The following table summarises the Group s profit before income tax by operating
segment for the financial years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011.

12 Months
Ended 31 March

2012 2011
(A$ in Thousands)

Revenue
  -  Retail finance (1) ............................................................................. 680,529 579,914
  -  Wholesale finance (2) ...................................................................... 143,837 140,742
Total revenue ...................................................................................... 824,366 720,656
Profit before income tax
  -  Retail finance (1) ............................................................................. 168,678 134,573
  -  Wholesale finance (2) ...................................................................... 20,096 22,488
Share of net profit of equity accounted investments ............................. 7,262 7,811
Unallocated corporate net (expense)/benefit (3) .................................... (80,447) (41,648)
Profit before income tax ................................................................ 115,589 123,224
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Income tax Expense ............................................................................ (30,249) (31,281)
Total Profit after income tax ............................................................ 85,340 91,943

______________
Note

1. Retail finance comprises loans and leases to personal and business customers.
2. Wholesale finance comprises loans and bailment facilities to motor vehicle dealers.
3. Unallocated corporate net benefit/(expenses) comprise those revenues/expenses which cannot be

allocated to either retail or wholesale finance on a reasonable basis.

Retail finance revenue grew by 17.4% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011.  This
reflects growth in retail loans and receivables due to strong new business origination
precipitated by increased joint sales and marketing activities with distributor and
dealers.

Retail finance profit before tax increased by 25.3% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal
2011. Retail finance profit before tax for fiscal 2012 was affected by the following
factors: (i) growth in average earning assets; (ii) improvement in the recovery of
residual  values  on  sale  of  motor  vehicles  under  operating  lease  that  has  also  led  to  a
release of provision for impairment of loans and receivables in respect of residual value
provisions; offset by (iii) higher sales and marketing expenses and (iv) unrealised net
loss on the fair valuation of derivatives/foreign currency gains/losses on the translation
of foreign currency debt.

Wholesale revenue increased by 2.2% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011.  The
increase in wholesale revenue relative to the comparative period is due to an increase in
the average monthly outstanding wholesale loans and receivables.

Wholesale finance profit before tax decreased by 10.6% in fiscal 2012 compared to
fiscal 2011. The decrease in wholesale finance profit before tax for fiscal 2012 is
attributable to lower recoveries of bad debts and higher provision requirements in fiscal
2012.

Unallocated corporate net expense was $80.4 million in fiscal 2012 compared to $41.6
million in fiscal 2011. The increase in corporate expenses of $38.8 million is mainly
attributable to unrealised losses of $31.7 million arising from fair valuation of
derivatives/translation of foreign currency debt and an increase in corporate staff costs
of $5.1 million resulting from higher staff numbers to cater for continued business
growth and modest pay increases.
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Loans and Receivables
31 March

2012
31 March

2011
(A$ in Thousands)

Bailment stock ............................................................................ 1,755,104 1,453,792
Motor vehicles under operating lease .......................................... 1,220,197 1,056,981
Term loans.................................................................................. 8,484,329 7,286,317
Finance leases ............................................................................. 950,631 899,183
Gross loans and receivables ...................................................... 12,410,261 10,696,273
Accumulated depreciation on motor vehicles under operating
lease ........................................................................................... (374,703) (273,557)
Unearned income ........................................................................ (1,195,237) (1,088,703)
Net loans and receivables (net of unearned income) ................ 10,840,321 9,334,013
Provision for impairment of loans and receivables....................... (145,859) (130,134)

Net loans and receivables .......................................................... 10,694,462 9,203,879

Overall there was growth of 16.2% in net loans and receivables in fiscal 2012 compared
to fiscal 2011. This is a reflection of (i) Toyota s continued number one position in the
Australian motor vehicle market; (ii) TFA s competitive advantage in obtaining funding
as a result of existing credit support arrangements involving TMC and TFS; (iii) the
acquisition of new dealer accounts; and (iv) strong new business origination precipitated
by increased joint sales and marketing activities with distributor and dealers.

Bailment stock, comprising motor vehicles financed by the Group on behalf of
dealerships, increased by 20.7% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The increase in
bailment stock levels is a reflection of dealerships holding higher floorplan stock. The
Group continues to focus on maintaining strong relationships with its dealers. The
bailment stock balance can be volatile as it is influenced by such factors as the timing of
the importation of new vehicles into the country and hence delivery to dealership car
yards, changes in the product mix of vehicles towards smaller, fuel efficient, lower
value models, run-off of older models in anticipation of new models, as well as
seasonality and economic conditions.

Motor vehicles under operating lease increased by 15.4% on a gross basis in fiscal 2012
compared  to  fiscal  2011.  On  a  net  of  accumulated  depreciation  basis,  the  balance
likewise increased by 7.9% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The increase reflects
Toyota Fleet Management s focus on expanding its business through the acquisition of
new customers.

Term Loans increased by 16.4% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. This is
primarily due to strong growth in consumer and commercial lending driven by increased
joint sales and marketing activities with distributor over the period. Similarly, there was
growth in unearned income of 9.8% over the equivalent period.

Finance leases increased by 5.7% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The
comparatively slow rate of growth reflects our retail customers current preference
financing through chattel mortgage loans rather than through leases.
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Provisions for impairment decreased slightly as a percentage of net loans and
receivables (net of unearned income) in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011 (see
Impairment of Loans and Receivables  below for further commentary).

A maturity analysis of net loans and receivables (net of unearned income) follows.

31 March
2012

31 March
2011

(A$ in Thousands)
At call......................................................................................... 1,847,310 1,531,593
Not longer than 3 months ............................................................ 586,361 555,370
Longer than 3 months and not longer than 12 months .................. 1,892,624 1,649,010
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years............................ 6,255,702 5,476,235
Longer than 5 years..................................................................... 258,324 121,805

Total .......................................................................................... 10,840,321 9,334,013

The increase of 16.1% in the maturity analysis total in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal
2011 is generally reflective of the corresponding increase in the majority of the maturity
bandings in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011.

Net financing income
12 Months

Ended 31 March
2012 2011

(A$ in Thousands)
Interest and similar revenue............................................................ 808,443 707,736
Interest expense and similar charges............................................... (561,664) (482,203)

Net financing income ................................................................... 246,779 225,533

The following table shows the amounts of each of the Group s major categories of
interest revenue and expense.

12 Months
Ended 31 March

2012 2011
Interest

(A$ in Thousands)
Interest and similar revenue
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................ 28,099 23,185
Lease income ............................................................................... 134,407 116,409
Other loans and receivables.......................................................... 704,437 616,710
Total interest revenue................................................................... 866,943 756,304

Fee and commission income......................................................... 64,626 49,977
Fee and commission expense ....................................................... (123,126) (98,545)
Total interest and similar revenue................................................. 808,443 707,736
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Interest expense and similar charges
Due to banks and other financial institutions ................................ 168,397 121,663
Bonds and commercial paper ....................................................... 202,793 207,053
Borrowings from parent entity...................................................... 294 -
Net (gain)/loss on translation of foreign currency debt .................. 24,015 (277,609)
Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss .................................................... 159,421 424,826
Transaction costs.......................................................................... 6,744 6,270

Total interest expense and similar charges .................................... 561,664 482,203

Interest and similar revenue increased by 14.2% in the fiscal year ended 31 March 2012
compared to fiscal 2011. This was driven by a 16.1% increase in net loans and
receivables over the comparison period.

The Company s fee and commission income increased 29.3% in the fiscal year ended
31 March 2012 compared to fiscal 2011.  This was due to growth in the loans and
receivables portfolio.

Fee and commission expense increased by 24.9% in the fiscal year ended 31 March
2012 compared to fiscal 2011 primarily due to growth in the loans and receivables
portfolio over the same period and the impact of additional commission payments.

Interest expense and similar charges increased by 16.5% in the fiscal year ended 31
March 2012 compared to fiscal 2011. The increase was primarily due to (i) higher
average borrowings outstanding by 16.7% to fund the growth in loans and receivables
and (ii) unrealised net loss of $31.7 million on the fair valuation of derivative
instruments/translation of foreign currency debt in the fiscal year ended 31 March 2012.
The Company continues to use derivative contracts as part of its interest rate risk
management program.

Expenses

12 Months
Ended 31 March
2012 2011
(A$ in Thousands)

Employee benefits expense ............................................................ 60,285 46,531

Other expenses
  - Rental expense relating to operating leases................................. 4,744 3,852
  - Net loss/(gain) on disposal of leased and fixed assets ................. (6,543) (3,517)
Impairment losses
  -  Computer software development............................................. 11 5461

______________
Note

1. The impairment losses are included in the Net loss/(gain) on disposal of leased and fixed assets
amount but are shown separately for disclosure purposes.
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Employee benefits expenses records the payroll expense of permanent and temporary
staff along with the associated on costs such as pension costs, taxes, recruitment costs
and training costs.  The increase of 29.6% in fiscal 2012 compared to fiscal 2011 was
due to higher costs on staff as the company accommodated the growth in loans and
receivables, and costs associated with the consolidation of call centres into a National
Customer Solutions Centre in North Ryde.

Rental expense relating to operating lease records property rental expenses under non-
cancellable operating leases. Rental expense increased by 23.2% in fiscal 2012
compared to fiscal 2011 reflecting a number of the Company s leased premises being
subjected to market rental reviews during the past 12 months and the leasing of
additional space in NSW.

A net gain on disposal of leased and fixed assets of $6.5 million was realised in fiscal
2012 compared to net gain of $3.5 million in fiscal 2011. The Company sold more
vehicles  at  higher  prices  when  compared  to  the  prior  fiscal  year  due  to  a  strong
secondary motor vehicle market.

Impairment of Loans and Receivables

The Group s level of credit losses is influenced primarily by two factors: the total
number of contracts that default ( frequency of occurrence ) and loss per occurrence
( loss severity ).  The Group maintains an allowance for credit losses to cover probable
losses.  The following table provides information related to the Group s credit loss
experience.

As at
31 March

2012
31 March

2011
(A$ in Thousands)

Provision for impairment of loans and receivables
Opening balance ............................................................................ 130,134 108,466
Bad debts written off...................................................................... (27,138) (22,666)
Increase in provision ...................................................................... 42,863 44,334
Closing balance.............................................................................. 145,859 130,134

12 months
Ended 31 March
2012 2011
(A$ in Thousands)

Bad and doubtful debts expense
Recovery of bad debts written off................................................... (5,063) (6,532)
Increase in provision ...................................................................... 42,863 44,334
Total bad and doubtful debts expense............................................. 37,800 37,802

Provisions for impairment of loans and receivables are established when there is
objective evidence that the Group is unlikely to collect all amounts due under the
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original terms of the contract. The above balances are considered adequate to cover
expected credit losses as of 31 March 2012.

The total provision for impairment of loans and receivables as at 31 March 2012 is
$145.9 million or 1.35% of net loans and receivables before provisions compared to
$130.1 million or 1.39% of net loans and receivables before provisions at 31 March
2011. The provision as a percentage of receivables is in line with the prior fiscal year.
The Group continues to review and update its provisioning methodologies as and when
it is deemed necessary.

Total bad and doubtful debt expense is in line with prior year. The Company saw an
improvement in the recovery of residual values on the sale of motor vehicles under
operating lease in fiscal 2012 which has led to a release of provision for impairment of
loans and receivables in respect of residual value provisions. At the same time there has
been no deterioration in the quality of objective evidence on the collectability of the
contracts in the retail  and wholesale portfolios in the current year which resulted in an
increase in impairment of provisions in line with growth in loans and receivables.

Cashflows

Abridged Statement of Cashflows
12 Months

Ended 31 March
2012 2011
(A$ in Thousands)

Net cash outflow from lending and other operating activities.......... (1,622,361) (1,500,089)
Interest received............................................................................. 868,314 754,224
Interest paid ................................................................................... (524,065) (465,455)
Net income taxes paid .................................................................... (32,197) (1,898)
Net cash outflow from operating activities ..................................... (1,310,309) (1,218,431)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ...................................... (7,418) (14,176)
Net cash inflow from financing activities ....................................... 549,928 1,961,573
Net (decrease)/increase in cash held ............................................... (767,799) 728,966

Cashflows provided by operating, investing and financing activities have been used
primarily to support asset growth.

In fiscal 2012 an inflow of funds of $549.9 million and a net interest inflow of $344.2
million were used to finance increased lending of $1,622.4 million. There was a $767.8
million decrease in the Group s net cash position during the year.

In fiscal 2011 an inflow of funds of $1,961.6 million and a net interest inflow of $288.8
million were used to finance increased lending of $1,509.1 million. There was a $729.0
million increase in the Group s net cash position during the year.

The Group believes that cash provided by operating and financing activities as well as
access to domestic and international capital markets and the issuance of commercial
paper will provide sufficient liquidity to meet future funding requirements.
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Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The consolidated entity s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The consolidated entity s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance of the consolidated entity.  The consolidated entity does not
enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
speculative purposes.  Derivative financial instruments are used to manage the
consolidated entity s exposure to currency risk and interest rate risk.

Risk management is carried out by various committees and departments based on
charters or policies approved by senior management.

Asset and Liability Committee

An Asset and Liability Committee meets to proactively and collaboratively manage and
monitor the interest rate and liquidity risks of the consolidated entity.  The consolidated
entity s Treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks.  The
treasury department implements the consolidated entity s policies to manage the
consolidated entity s foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk with financial
intermediaries and liquidity risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The consolidated entity operates in international capital markets to obtain debt funding
to support its earning assets.  Transactions may be denominated in foreign currencies,
exposing the consolidated entity to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures.

Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
currency  that  is  not  the  entity s  functional  currency  and  net  investments  in  foreign
operations.  The risk is measured using debt maturity analysis.

Management has set up a policy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its foreign
exchange risk against their functional currency.  The consolidated entity is required to
hedge 100% of its foreign exchange risk at the time of debt issuances.  Derivative
financial instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to hedge its exposure to
foreign currency risk, including:

· forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk arising on
the issue of commercial paper in foreign currencies; and

· cross currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk
associated with foreign currency denominated medium term notes and foreign
currency denominated loans.

The consolidated entity s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting period
ending 31 March 2012 is immaterial.  There has been no change in this position  when
compared to the reporting period ending 31 March 2011.
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  Fair value interest rate risk is
the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The consolidated entity is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates as it borrows and lends at both floating and
fixed rates. Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity
to manage its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk, including:

· fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by
the consolidated entity s earning assets.  Such interest rate swaps have the
economic effect of converting loans and receivables from fixed rates to floating
rates;

· fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by
the consolidated entity s functional currency denominated fixed rate medium term
notes.  Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings
from fixed rates to floating rates; and

· cross currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk
associated with foreign currency denominated medium term notes.  Such cross
currency swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from foreign
denominated fixed rates to functional currency floating rates.

Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to
exchange, at specified intervals (mainly quarterly), the difference between fixed
contract rates, and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principal amounts.  Under the cross currency swaps, the consolidated entity
agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foreign currency principal
and fixed rate interest amounts and functional currency principal and floating rate
interest amounts calculated with reference to the agreed functional currency principal
amount.

The consolidated entity s policy is to maintain most of its debt exposure in functional
currency at floating rate, using interest rate swaps or cross currency swaps to achieve
this when necessary.  The consolidated entity s policy is to maintain between 20% and
50% of its loans and receivables funded at floating rate, using interest rate swaps to
achieve this when necessary.
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The following table details the Group s exposure to interest rate risk as at the end of the
reporting period.

Fixed Interest Rate

31 March 2012

Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate %

Variable
Interest

Rate
$ 000

Less than
1 year
$ 000

1 to 5
years
$ 000

Over 5
years
$ 000

Non
Interest
Bearing
$ 000

Total

$ 000

Financial Assets
Other assets................ - - - - - 30,410 30,410
Cash and liquid
assets ......................... 4.8% 179,200 - - - - 179,200
Loans and
receivables ................. 8.6% 2,669,105 2,418,210 5,542,663 210,343 - 10,840,321
Hedge swaps .............. - 6,664,000
Total financial assets .. 9,512,305 (321,790) 1,618,663 210,343 30,410 11,049,931

Financial
Liabilities
Other liabilities - - - - - 366,108 366,108
Banks & other
financial institutions ... 5.2% 5,115,845 - - - - 5,115,845
Loans from related
company .................... 4.5% 528,999 528,999
Commercial paper ...... 4.5% - - - - - 1,380,438
Medium term notes..... 4.9% - 851,002 1,699,682 86,719 - 2,637,403
Cross currency
swaps......................... - 1,196,304 (541,401) (561,908) (92,995) - -
Interest rate swaps ...... - 1,438,800 (316,000) (1,122,800) - - -
Total financial
liabilities ................... 9,660,386 (6,399) 14,974 (6,276) 366,108 10,028,793
Net financial assets.... (148,081) (315,391) 1,603,689 216,619 (335,698) 1,021,13

Fixed Interest Rate

31 March 2011

Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate %

Variable
Interest

Rate
$ 000

Less than
1 year
$ 000

1 to 5
years
$ 000

Over 5
years
$ 000

Non
Interest
Bearing
$ 000

Total

$ 000

Financial Assets
Other assets................ - - - - - 44,845 44,845
Cash and liquid
assets ......................... 4.7% 946,999 - - - - 946,999
Loans and
receivables ................. 8.1% 2,275,950 2,115,572 4,822,822 119,669 - 9,334,013
Hedge swaps .............. - 5,437,000 (2,530,000) (2,907,000) - - -
Total financial assets .. 8,659,949 (414,428) 1,915,822 119,669 44,845 10,325,857

Financial
Liabilities
Other liabilities........... - - - - - 306,519 306,519
Banks & other
financial institutions ... 5.8% 4,133,107 - - - - 4,133,107
Commercial paper ...... 5.0% 961,677 - - - - 961,677
Medium term notes..... 5.4% 19,346 1,610,271 1,908,128 111,857 - 3,649,602
Cross Currency
Swaps ........................ - 1,912,943 (852,803) (937,277) (122,863) - -
Interest rate swaps ...... - 1,959,400 (904,000) (1,055,400) - - -
Total financial
liabilities ................... 8,986,473 (146,532) (84,549) (11,006) 306,519 9,050,905
Net financial assets.... (326,524) (267,896) 2,000,371 130,675 (261,674) 1,274,952
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Credit Risk

The  consolidated  entity s  Treasury  manages  credit  risk  through  the  use  of  external
rating such as Standard and Poor s rating or equivalents, counterparty diversification,
monitoring of counterparty financial condition and master netting agreements in place
with all derivative counterparties.

The below table shows the percentage of the consolidated entity s money market
deposits and derivatives relating to treasury funding activities, based on the Standard &
Poor s rating.

Rating

Consolidated
2012

%

Consolidated
2011

%
AAA........................................................................... - -
AA+ ........................................................................... - -
AA.............................................................................. 42 37
AA- ............................................................................ 6 6
A+ .............................................................................. 42 47
A- ............................................................................... 3 3
A ................................................................................ 7 7

100 100

The Group does not currently anticipate non-performance by any of its counterparties
and has no reserves related to non-performance as of 31 March 2012.  The Group has
not experienced any counterparty default during the 12 months ended 31 March 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group requires, in the normal course of business, substantial funding to support the
level  of  its  earning  assets.   Significant  reliance  is  placed  upon  the  Group s  ability  to
obtain debt funding in the capital markets and from other sources in addition to funding
provided by earning asset liquidations and cash provided by operating activities.

Commercial Paper

Commercial paper issuances are used to meet short-term funding needs.

Domestic commercial paper issued by TFA and outstanding ranged from approximately
$458 million to $600 million during the year ended 31 March 2012, with an average
outstanding balance of approximately $549 million.

Euro commercial paper issued by TFA and outstanding ranged from the equivalent of
approximately $418 million to the equivalent of approximately $1,282 million during
the year ended 31 March 2012, with an average outstanding balance of the equivalent of
approximately $803 million.
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Medium Term Notes

Long term funding requirements are met through, amongst other things, the issuance of
a variety of debt instruments in both the Australian and international capital markets.
Domestic and Euro medium term notes ( MTNs ) have provided TFA with significant
sources of funding in years prior to fiscal 2012. During the year ended 31 March 2012,
TFA issued approximately $538 million of Euro MTNs all of which had original
maturities of one month or more.

The original maturities of all MTNs outstanding at 31 March 2012 ranged from two
years to 10 years. As of 31 March 2012, TFA had total MTNs outstanding, the original
face value of which was the equivalent of $2,658 million, of which the equivalent of
approximately $1,220 million was denominated in foreign currencies.

TFA anticipates continued use of MTNs.  The Programmes under which MTNs are
issued by TFA in the Australian and international capital markets may be expanded or
updated from time to time to allow for the continued use of these sources of funding.  In
addition, TFA may issue notes in the Australian and international capital markets that
are not issued under its MTN programmes.

Back Up Liquidity and Other Funding Sources

For additional liquidity purposes, TFA maintains the following bank facilities: an
overdraft facility, committed commercial paper back up facilities, committed banking
facilities and uncommitted money market funding facilities which aggregated $1,425
million as at 31 March 2012 (includes $300 million committed securitisation
programme referred to below). The average aggregate amount outstanding under these
facilities during the year ended 31 March 2012 was approximately $nil.

In addition to funding obtained from bilateral bank loans entered into by TFA in years
prior to the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company entered into bilateral bank loans
during the year ended 31 March 2012 denominated in US$ totalling US$50 million and
denominated in A$ totalling A$500 million. The original tenors of these bilateral bank
loans ranged from 3 years to 5 years.

TFA also has a USD1 Billion revolving loan facility from Toyota Motor Credit
Corporation ( TMCC ) which is incorporated in California, United States of America.
TMCC  is  wholly-owned  by  Toyota  Financial  Services  Americas  Corporation,  a
California corporation which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TFA. The average
amount outstanding under this facility during the year ended 31 March 2012 was
approximately US$288 million.

TFA has four domestic securitisation programs. Under each program vehicle finance
receivables up to a specified maximum total amount may be sold into a special-purpose
securitisation trust. TFA partially guarantees the funding of each trust, and provides
subordinated funding to one trust. The guarantees are unsecured. The accounts of each
trust are included in TFA s consolidated financial statements.
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Details of each programme are as follows:

Date
Limit (A$
million) Commitment

TFA
guarantee

TFA
subordinated

funding

Balance at
31 March
2012 (A$
million)

November
2009 $1,700 Uncommitted 17% Nil $1,489.2

March 2011 $300 Committed 17% Nil Nil

March 2012 $1,000 Uncommitted 15% Nil $550.0

March 2012 $1,000 Uncommitted 15% 15% $195.5

Credit Ratings

The cost and availability of unsecured financing is influenced by credit ratings.  Lower
ratings generally result in higher borrowing costs as well as reduced access to capital
markets.  Credit ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold securities and are
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.  Each
rating agency may have different criteria for evaluating risk, and therefore ratings
should be evaluated independently for each rating agency.

Contractual Obligations and Credit Related Commitments

The Group has certain obligations to make future payments under contracts and credit-
related financial instruments and commitments. Aggregate contractual obligations and
credit-related commitments in existence at 31 March 2012 are summarised as follows:

Commitments expiring within the following
periods

Not longer
than 1 year

Longer than 1
year and not
longer than 5

years
Longer than

5 years
(A$ in Millions)

Contractual Obligations:
Premises occupied under lease ............... 3.5 7.3 0
Total debt .............................................. 4,092.0 5,484.0 86.7
Total ..................................................... 4,095.5 5,491.3 86.7

TFA, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited GST (goods and
services tax) Group (the GST Group ), is jointly and severally liable for 100% of the
GST payable by the GST Group.  The GST Group had a net GST payable as at 31
March 2012 of  $44.2 million (2011: $41.1 million).

TFA, in association with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner,
implemented the tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with TMCA as the
Head Entity. Under the tax consolidation legislation, tax consolidation entities are
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jointly and severally liable for the tax liability of the consolidated tax group unless a tax
sharing agreement has been entered into by member entities.  A tax sharing agreement
has been executed.  TFA believes the assets of the Head Entity are sufficient to meet the
tax liabilities as they fall due.

The range of Toyota Extra Care warranty contracts offered by TFA since August 2003,
provide an extended warranty to the customer in exchange for an upfront premium
payment.  The risk of claims has been fully insured with third party insurers.  TFA
considers the insurance of risk is sufficient to meet any claims which may eventuate.

A fully maintained operating lease is offered under the Group s current portfolio of
products.  Fully maintained operating leases require the Company to provide agreed
services at the Group s expense. Monthly rental includes a pre-determined charge for
such services.  The cost of such services is expensed periodically during the term of the
leases and recognised in the income statement in reference to the stage of completion
method.

The  Group  has  outstanding  commitments  to  extend  credit  in  the  normal  course  of
business.  Outstanding credit commitments provided to customers which were undrawn
as at the end of fiscal 2012 and 2011 are shown below.

31 March
2012

31 March
2011

(A$ in Thousands)
Term loans............................................................................... 192,354 150,854
Bailment stock ......................................................................... 413,339 465,904
Fleet facilities .......................................................................... 1,265,743 787,571
Total ....................................................................................... 1,871,436 1,404,329

Employees

At 31 March 2012, the Group had 475.35 adjusted full-time equivalent employees.
Adjusted full-time equivalent employees includes staff on maternity leave, outbound
secondments and 30.3 part time employees but does not include temporary or contractor
staff.

The number of employees by business cost centre as of 31 March 2012 is as follows:

Location
Adjusted FTE

Employees
Temporary

Staff
Contractor

Staff
Executive........................................................... 18 0 0
Corporate Services ............................................. 44 0 1
Technology Services .......................................... 46.1 0 24.8
Business Services............................................... 110.4 2 3
Dealer Sales, Finance & Insurance ..................... 149.25 0 0.5
Fleet Sales ......................................................... 96 0 0
Strategic Planning and Marketing....................... 11.6 0 0
Total ................................................................. 475.35 2 36.3
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The average age of TFA s employees is 39.3 years.  The average number of years of
employment of TFA s employees is  5 years 1 month and the annual average total
remuneration (including bonuses) of TFA s employees was $85,000.

There has been an increase in staff numbers over the last 12 months.

The  Group  has  no  employee  who  is  a  member  of  the  Finance  Sector  Union.   TFA
considers its employee relations to be satisfactory.

(B) Risks and Uncertainties facing the Group

The  principal  activities  of  TFA,  which  are  an  integral  part  of  the  Toyota  group s
presence in Australia, are to finance the acquisition of motor vehicles by customers in
the form of leasing, term purchase, consumer and commercial loans; to provide
bailment facilities and commercial loans to motor dealers; to provide operating lease
and fleet management services to customers; and to administer and manage extended
warranty and insurance products.

Unless otherwise specified in this section, TFS group  means TFS and its subsidiaries
and affiliates and Toyota  means TMC and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Each of the Group, TFS and Toyota may be exposed to certain risks and uncertainties
that could have a material adverse impact directly or indirectly on its financial condition
and results of operations:

General Business and Economic Conditions

The Group s financial condition and results of operations are affected by a variety of
factors, including changes in the overall market for retail sales, retail or wholesale
motor vehicle financing, leasing or dealer financing, changes in the level of sales of
Toyota and/or Lexus vehicles or other vehicles in Australia, the number and average
balance of customer accounts, the Australian finance industry s regulatory environment,
competition from other financiers, rate of default by its customers, the interest rates it is
required to pay on the funding it requires to support its business, amounts of funding
available to it, changes in the funding markets, the used vehicle market, changes in its
credit ratings, the success of efforts to expand its product lines, levels of operating
expenses and general and administrative expenses, including but not limited to labour
costs, technology costs (including, but not limited to, amortisation expense and/or
impairment losses arising from capitalised intangible assets and maintenance costs) and
premises costs, general economic conditions, inflation, fiscal and monetary policies in
Australia as well as other countries in which the Group issues debt. Further, a
significant and sustained increase in fuel prices could lead to lower new and used
vehicle purchases.  This could reduce the demand for motor vehicle retail and wholesale
financing.  In turn, lower used vehicle prices could affect amounts written off and
depreciation on operating leases.

Adverse economic conditions in Australia may lead to diminished consumer and
business confidence, lower household incomes, increases in unemployment rates as well
as consumer and commercial bankruptcy filings, all of which could adversely affect
vehicle sales and discretionary customer spending. These conditions may decrease the
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demand for the Group s financing products, as well as increase defaults and losses.  In
addition, where credit exposures of the Group are collateralised by vehicles, the severity
of losses can be particularly affected by the decline in used vehicle prices. Vehicle and
industrial equipment dealers are also affected by economic slowdowns, which in turn
increases the risk of default of certain dealers within the Group s portfolios.

Market conditions are subject to periods of volatility which can have the effect of
reducing activity in a range of consumer and industry sectors which can adversely
impact the financial performance of the Group. Elevated levels of market disruption and
volatility could have a negative impact on the Group s ability to access the international
capital markets and fund its business in a similar manner, and at a similar cost, to the
funding raised in the past. These market conditions could also have an adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Group by diminishing the value
of the Group s investment portfolio and increasing the Group s cost of funding. If as a
result, the Group increases the rates the Group charges its customers and dealers, the
Group s competitive position could be negatively affected. Challenging market
conditions may result in less liquidity, greater volatility, widening of credit spreads and
lack of price transparency in credit markets.  Changes in investment markets, including
changes in interest rates, exchange rates and returns from equity, property and other
investments, will affect (whether directly or indirectly) the financial performance of the
Group.

If there is a continued and sustained period of market disruption and volatility:

· there can be no assurance that TFA will continue to have access to the capital
markets in a similar manner and at a similar cost as it has in the past;

· issues of debt securities by TFA may be undertaken at spreads above benchmark
rates that are greater than those on similar issuances undertaken during the prior
several years;

· TFA may be subject to over reliance on a particular funding source or a
simultaneous increase in funding costs across a broad range of sources; and

· the ratio of TFA s short-term debt outstanding to total debt outstanding may
increase if negative conditions in the debt markets lead TFA to replace some
maturing long-term liabilities with short-term liabilities (for example, commercial
paper).

Any  of  these  developments  could  have  an  adverse  effect  on  the  Group s  financial
condition and results of operations.

Recalls and Other Related Announcements

Beginning in the latter part of the financial year ended 31 March 2010, certain members
and  affiliates  of  the  Toyota  group  of  companies  around  the  world  announced  several
recalls and temporary suspensions of sales and production of certain Toyota and Lexus
models. In September 2010 Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited also
announced a safety recall in respect of certain Toyota models. Because the Group s
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business is substantially dependent upon the sale of Toyota and Lexus vehicles, these
events or similar future events could adversely affect the Group s business.

A decrease in the level of sales, including as a result of the actual or perceived quality,
safety or reliability of Toyota and Lexus vehicles, will have a negative impact on the
level of the Group s financing volume, insurance volume, earning assets and revenues.
The credit performance of the Group s dealer and consumer lending and/or finance
portfolios may also be adversely affected. In addition, a decline in values of used
Toyota and Lexus vehicles would have a negative effect on realised values and return
rates, which, in turn, could increase the Group s depreciation expenses and credit losses.
Further, some members and affiliates of the Toyota group of companies are subject to
recall-related litigation. In addition, some affiliates of the Toyota group of companies
are subject to governmental investigations, and have or may become subject to fines or
other penalties in respect of recall-related events. These factors could have a negative
effect on the Group s financial condition and results of operations.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a failure of a customer or dealer to meet the
terms of any contract with the Group or otherwise fail to perform as agreed. The level of
credit risk on the Group s wholesale, retail sales, fleet and lease portfolios is influenced
primarily by two factors: the total number of contracts that default and the amount of
loss per occurrence, which in turn are influenced by various economic factors, the used
vehicle market, purchase quality mix, contract term length and operational changes.

The level of credit risk on the Group s dealer financing portfolio is influenced primarily
by the financial strength of dealers within that portfolio, dealer concentration, the
quality and perfection of collateral and other economic factors.  The financial strength
of dealers within the dealer financing portfolio is influenced by general macroeconomic
conditions, the overall demand for new and used vehicles and the financial condition of
motor vehicle manufacturers, among other factors.  An increase in credit risk would
increase the Group s provision for credit losses, which would have a negative impact on
its financial condition and results of operations.

A downturn in economic conditions in Australia increases the risk that a customer or
dealer may not meet the terms of a finance contract with the Group or may otherwise
fail to perform as agreed.  A weaker economic environment, evidenced by, among other
things, unemployment, underemployment and consumer bankruptcy filings, may affect
some of the Group s customers  ability to make their scheduled payments. There can be
no  assurance  that  the  Group s  monitoring  of  credit  risk,  the  taking  and  perfection  of
collateral and its efforts to mitigate credit risk are, or will be, sufficient to prevent an
adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations.

Counterparty Credit Risk

The Group has exposure to many different financial institutions and the Group routinely
executes transactions with counterparties in the financial industry. The Group s debt,
derivative and investment transactions, and its ability to borrow under committed and
uncommitted credit facilities could be adversely affected by the actions and commercial
soundness of other financial institutions.  Deterioration of social, political, employment
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or economic conditions in a specific country or region, such as uncertainties relating to
European sovereign and non-sovereign debt, may also adversely affect the ability of
financial institutions, including the Group s derivative counterparties and lenders, to
perform their contractual obligations. Financial institutions are interrelated as a result of
trading, clearing, lending or other relationships and, as a result, financial and political
difficulties in one country or region may adversely affect financial institutions in other
jurisdictions, including those with which the Group has relationships. The failure of any
of the financial institutions and other counterparties to which the Group has exposure,
directly or indirectly, to perform their contractual obligations, and any losses resulting
from that failure, may materially and adversely affect the Group s liquidity, financial
condition and results of operations.

Residual Value Risk

Residual value represents an estimate of the end of term market value of a leased asset.
Residual value risk is the risk that the estimated residual value at lease origination will
not be recoverable at the end of the lease term. The Group is subject to residual value
risk on lease products where the customer may return the financed vehicle on
termination of the lease agreement.  Fluctuations in the market value of leased assets
subsequent to lease origination may introduce volatility in the Group s profitability,
through residual value provisions and/or gains or losses on disposal of leased assets.
Among other factors, local, regional and national economic conditions, new vehicle
pricing, new vehicle incentive programmes, new vehicle sales, the actual or perceived
quality, safety or reliability of vehicles, future plans for new Toyota and Lexus product
introductions, competitive actions and behaviour, product attributes of popular vehicles,
the mix of used vehicle supply, the level of current used vehicle values and fuel prices
heavily influence used vehicle prices and also the actual residual value of off-lease
vehicles. Differences between the actual residual values realised on leased vehicles and
the Group s estimates of such values at lease origination could have a negative impact
on its financial condition and results of operations.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk arising from the inability to meet obligations when they are due
in  a  timely  manner.  The  Group s  liquidity  strategy  is  to  maintain  the  capacity  to  fund
assets  and  repay  liabilities  in  a  timely  and  cost-effective  manner  even  in  the  event  of
adverse market conditions. An inability to meet obligations when they become due in a
timely manner would have a negative impact on the Group s ability to refinance
maturing debt and fund new asset growth and would have an adverse effect on its
financial condition and results of operations.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates and other relevant market parameters or prices cause volatility in the TFS group s
(including the Group s) financial condition and/or results of operations and/or cash
flow. The effect of an increase in market interest rates on the TFS group s income and
capital (including that of the Group) could have an adverse effect on the TFS group s
(including the Group s) business, financial condition and results of operations by
increasing the rates it charges to its customers and dealers, thereby affecting its
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competitive position.  Market risk also includes the risk that the value of the investment
portfolio of the TFS group (including the Group) could decline.

Senior management of TFA and TFS, where applicable, provide written principles for
overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
currency exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments.  Risk management is carried out by various
committees and departments based on charters or policies approved by senior
management of TFA and TFS, where applicable.

The Group operates in the international capital markets to obtain debt funding to
support its earning assets.  Transactions may be denominated in foreign currencies,
exposing the Group to foreign currency exchange rate risk arising from various currency
exposures.

The Group has a policy requiring it to manage its foreign currency exchange rate risk
against its functional currency (i.e. Australian dollars).  The Group is required to hedge
100 per cent. of its foreign currency exchange rate risk.  Derivative financial
instruments are entered into by the Group to economically hedge its exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates and/or the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  The Group is
exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates as
it borrows and lends at both floating and fixed rates.  Derivative financial instruments
are entered into by the Group to manage its exposure to interest rate risk.

Adverse changes in market interest rates and/or foreign currency exchange rates could
affect the value of derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group which
could result in volatility in the Group s financial condition and/or results of operations.
Changes in the fair value of derivatives to the extent that they are not offset by the
translation of the items economically hedged, may introduce volatility in the Group s
income statement and produce anomalous results.

Possible Increase in Prevailing Market Interest Rates

An increase in the interest rates charged by the Group s lenders or available to the
Group in the capital markets may adversely affect the Group s income.

As the Group s assets consist primarily of fixed rate contracts, it is not able to reprice its
existing fixed rate contracts and may be unable to increase rates on new fixed rate
contracts due to competitive reasons.

Operational Risk

Operational  risk  is  the  risk  of  loss  resulting  from,  among  other  factors,  inadequate  or
failed processes, systems or internal controls, the failure to perfect collateral, theft,
fraud, cybersecurity breaches, natural disasters or other catastrophe (including without
limitation, explosions, fires, floods, terrorist attacks, riots, civil disturbances and
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epidemics). Operational risk can occur in many forms including, but not limited to,
errors, business interruptions, failure of controls, inappropriate behaviour or misconduct
by  employees  of,  or  those  contracted  to  perform  services  for,  the  Group  and  vendors
that do not perform in accordance with their contractual agreements.  The Group is also
exposed to the risk of inappropriate or inadequate documentation of contractual
relationships. These events can potentially result in financial losses or other damages to
the Group, including damage to reputation.

The Group relies on internal and external information and technological systems to
manage its operations and is exposed to risk of loss resulting from breaches in the
security or other failures of these systems. The Group collects and stores certain
personal and financial information from customers and/or employees. Security breaches
could expose the Group to a risk of loss of this information, regulatory scrutiny, actions
and penalties, litigation, reputational harm and a loss of confidence that could
potentially have an adverse impact on future business with current and potential
customers. In addition, any upgrade or replacement of its transaction systems and
treasury  systems  could  have  a  significant  impact  on  its  ability  to  conduct  its  core
business operations and increase the risk of loss resulting from disruptions of normal
operating processes and procedures that may occur during the implementation of new
information and transaction systems. These factors could have an adverse effect on the
Group s financial condition and results of operations.

In particular, the Personal Property Securities Act 2009 of Australia has established a
national system for the registration of collateral, and new rules for the creation,
perfection and enforcement of collateral. The Group has implemented new processes
and procedures to comply with the new regime. The Group believes these new
processes and procedures are reliable, but if any defect should be identified in the future
in the Group s processes and procedures, that could have a negative impact on the
Group s business.

The Group also relies on a framework of internal controls designed to provide a sound
and well-controlled operating environment.  Due to the nature of its business and the
challenges inherent in implementing control structures, problems may be identified in
the future that could have a material effect on its financial condition and results of
operations.

The  Group  strives  to  maintain  appropriate  levels  of  operational  risk  relative  to  its
business strategies, competitive and regulatory environment, and markets in which it
operates.  Appropriate levels of insurance coverage are maintained for those operating
risks that can be mitigated through the purchase of insurance.  Notwithstanding these
control measures and insurance coverage, the Group remains exposed to operational
risk.  However, while the Group s approach to operational risk management is intended
to mitigate such losses, management can provide no assurance that these problems will
not have a material effect on the Group s financial condition and results of operations.

Regulatory Risk

Regulatory risk is the risk arising from the failure or alleged failure to comply with
applicable regulatory requirements and the risk of liability and other costs imposed
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under various laws and regulations, including changes in applicable law, regulation and
regulatory guidance.

Competition

The worldwide financial services industry is highly competitive and the Group has no
control over how Toyota dealers source financing for their customers. Competitors of
the Group include commercial banks, credit unions and other financial institutions. To a
lesser extent, the Group competes with other motor vehicle manufacturers  affiliated
finance companies. Increases in competitive pressures could have an adverse impact on
the Group s contract volume, market share, revenues and margins.  Further, the
financial  condition  and  viability  of  competitors  and  peers  of  the  Group  may  have  an
impact on the financial services industry in which the Group operates, resulting in
changes in demand for its products and services.  This could have an adverse impact on
the Group s financial condition and results of operations.

The availability of the Australian Government Guarantee Scheme for Large Deposits
and Wholesale Funding, which closed to new guaranteed liabilities on 31 March 2010
and was not available to the Group, may have provided a competitive advantage to
authorised deposit-taking institutions in Australia through enhancing their access to
funding sources and/or by lowering their funding costs. This could have an adverse
impact on the Group s profitability and the volume of its business.

Controlling Shareholder Credit Ratings and Credit Support

All of the outstanding capital stock and voting stock of TFA is owned directly or
indirectly by TFS.  TFS is a wholly-owned holding company subsidiary of TMC.

As a result, TFS effectively controls TFA and is able to directly control the composition
of the Board of Directors of TFA and direct the management and policies of TFA.

TFA raises most of the funding it requires to support its business from the domestic and
international capital markets.  The cost and availability of that funding is influenced by
credit ratings. Lower credit ratings generally result in higher borrowing costs as well as
reduced access to capital markets. Credit ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell,
or hold securities and are subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning
nationally recognised statistical rating organisation ( NRSRO ). Each NRSRO may
have different criteria for evaluating risk, and therefore ratings should be evaluated
independently for each NRSRO.

The credit ratings for notes, bonds and commercial paper issued by TFA, depend, in
large part, on the existence of the credit support arrangements with TFS and TMC and
on the financial condition and results of operations of TMC and its consolidated
subsidiaries. If these arrangements (or replacement arrangements acceptable to the
rating  agencies)  are  not  available  to  TFA,  or  if  the  credit  ratings  of  TMC and TFS as
credit support providers were lowered, the credit ratings for notes, bonds and
commercial paper issued by TFA would be adversely impacted.

Credit rating agencies which rate the credit of TMC and its affiliates, including TFS and
TFA, may qualify or alter ratings at any time.  Downgrades or placement on review for
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possible downgrades could result in an increase in borrowing costs as well as reduced
access to global unsecured debt capital markets. These factors would have a negative
impact on the Group s competitive position, financial condition and results of
operations.

The credit support arrangements may be amended, provided that such amendment does
not have any adverse effects upon any holder of any notes, bonds, commercial paper or
certain other securities of TFA outstanding at the time of such amendment, and does not
require the acceptance of the rating agencies. If TFA for any reason does not have the
benefit of these arrangements, TFA would expect the credit ratings of notes, bonds and
commercial paper issued by it to be substantially less than the current ratings of notes,
bonds and commercial paper issued by it, leading to either significantly constrained
access, or no access, to the domestic or international capital markets, substantially
higher borrowing costs and potentially an inability to raise the volume of funding
necessary for it to operate its business.

Business Risk

Business risk is the risk that the businesses are not able to cover their ongoing expenses
with ongoing income subsequent to the event of a major market contraction.

Sales of Toyota Vehicles

TFA s business is substantially dependent upon the sale of Toyota and Lexus vehicles
and its ability to offer competitive financing in its market place. TFA s business is also
substantially dependent upon its accredited Toyota and other vehicle dealership network
introducing  new  finance  and  lease  business  to  TFA  and,  except  in  the  case  of  TFA s
business regulated under the Australian consumer credit laws or as otherwise agreed
with TFA, such dealerships are free to introduce other financiers to their customers.
Competition in respect of commission payments to Australian dealerships from other
financiers, as well as changes in ownership or financial viability of such dealerships
may adversely affect the financial condition and results of operations of TFA.

Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited (the Distributor ) is the primary
distributor of Toyota and Lexus vehicles ( Toyota vehicles ) in Australia. Higher levels
of sales of new and used Toyota vehicles in Australia relative to the level of sales of
new and used vehicles of other makes are favourable for the Group s business.  Lower
levels of sales of new and used Toyota vehicles in Australia relative to the level of sales
of new and used vehicles of other makes are not favourable for the Group s business.

Factors in relation to the sale of new and used vehicles which would impact the level of
TFA s financing volume and results of operations include:

changes resulting from governmental action;

changes in consumer demand;
changes in economic conditions;

recalls;
the actual or perceived quality, safety or reliability of Toyota vehicles;
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decreased or delayed vehicle production, due to natural disasters, supply chain
interruptions or other events;

changes in the level of the Distributor s sponsored subsidy and incentive
programmes;

increased competition;
changes in the effectiveness of motor vehicle dealers selling Toyota vehicles
relative to those selling vehicles of other makes;
changes in pricing of imported units due to currency fluctuations or other
reasons; and
significant increases in fuel prices which may adversely affect sales in the larger
Toyota vehicle range (but may increase sales in the smaller Toyota passenger
vehicle range).

Further, a significant and sustained increase in fuel prices could decrease new and used
vehicle purchases, thereby reducing the demand for motor vehicle retail and wholesale
financing.

The Group s Assets are Subject to Prepayment Risk

Customers may terminate their finance and lease contracts early.  As a result, the Group
estimates the rate of early termination of finance contracts in its interest rate hedging
activities. Consequently, changes in customer behaviour contrary to the Group s
estimates may affect its financial condition and results of operations.

Risk Relating to Non-Toyota Dealers

The Group provides financing for some dealerships which sell products not distributed
by  the  Distributor  (or  one  of  its  affiliates).   A  significant  adverse  change,  such  as  a
restructuring or bankruptcy of automobile manufacturers other than Toyota may
increase the risk that these dealers may default on their loans with the Group.

Toyota Extra Care

Under  an  agreement  with  the  Distributor,  TFA  markets,  administers  and  accepts  the
liability for claims arising under a range of factory extended warranty products
marketed through Toyota dealers to purchasers of Toyota and/or Lexus vehicles. Since
TFA acquired the rights to market the factory extended warranty products from the
Distributor, it has insured all of its liability for claims ( claims risk ) in respect of new
and used Toyota and/or Lexus vehicles with licensed insurers (the re-insurers ).  A
change in TFA s re-insurance practices has the potential to adversely impact the
financial condition and results of operations of TFA.

Large Exposures

A large exposure refers to the degree of concentration in a loan portfolio or a segment of
a loan portfolio. TFA has a large exposure to a number of dealerships and fleet
customers. In particular, dealerships may have common ownership and TFA may make
bailment and loan receivables to those groups of dealerships. Failure of a dealership or
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fleet customer to which TFA has a large exposure may adversely affect the financial
condition and results of operations of TFA.

Provisions for Bad and Doubtful Debts

The Group cannot assure that its allowance for bad and doubtful debts will be adequate
to cover future credit losses. Increases in credit losses could adversely affect the
Group s financial condition and results of operations.

Impact of Changes to Accounting Standards

The financial report for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been prepared in accordance
with the Australian Accounting Standards ( AAS ) promulgated by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board ( AASB ). The AAS incorporate International Financial
Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ( IASB ),  with  the  addition  of  paragraphs  on  the
applicability of each standard in the Australian environment.

The IASB is continuing its program to develop new accounting standards where it
perceives they are required and to rewrite existing standards where it perceives they can
be improved.  In particular, the IASB and the Financial Accounting Standards Board in
the  United  States  continue  to  work  together  to  harmonise  the  accounting  standards  of
the United States and IFRS.  Any future change in IFRS may have a beneficial or
detrimental impact on the reported earnings of the Group, where they are adopted by the
AASB.

Changes to Laws, Regulations or Government Policies

Changes to Australian laws, regulations or the policies of Australian governments
(federal, state or local) or of any other national governments (federal, state, provincial or
local) or international organisations (and the actions flowing from such changes to
policies) of any jurisdiction in which the Group conducts its business may have a
negative impact on the Group s business or require significant expenditure by the
Group, or significant changes to the Group s processes and procedures, to ensure
compliance with those laws, regulations or policies so that it can effectively carry on its
business.

Australian Taxation

The Group is subject to numerous tax laws and is required to remit many different types
of tax revenues based on self assessment and regulation.  The Group interprets the tax
legislation and accounts to the authorities based on its knowledge of the tax laws at the
time of its assessment.  Tax laws, or the interpretation thereof, are subject to change
through legislation, tax rulings or court interpretation.  Changes to the application or
interpretation of tax laws may adversely impact the Group s financial condition and
results of operations.

The Group may also be subject to an audit by tax authorities for up to seven years after
its self assessment.  If the Group has not accounted correctly for its tax liabilities, this
may adversely impact the Group s financial condition and results of operations.
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Potential future Australian Government policy measures, including but not limited to
potential future carbon taxes or potential future stimulus measures, may directly or
indirectly impact the Group s net income. A later future modification or cessation of
such potential future measures may adversely impact the net income of the Group.

TFA s membership of the GST Group and an income tax consolidated group is
discussed in Contractual Obligations and Credit Related Commitments  of 1.
Management Report .  Transactions by other members of the GST Group and income
tax consolidated group with external parties to those groups may be subject to review by
the tax authorities and would be dealt with by the head company of the relevant group.
As such, TFA will generally either have no knowledge, or not have detailed knowledge,
of any such review as they pertain to other members of the relevant group.

Legal Proceedings

The TFS group is and may be subject to various legal actions, governmental
proceedings and other claims arising in the ordinary course of business.  A negative
outcome  in  one  or  more  of  these  legal  proceedings  may  adversely  affect  the  TFS
group s financial condition and results of operations.

Insolvency Laws

In the event that TFA becomes insolvent, insolvency proceedings (including, without
limitation, administration under the Corporations Act 2001 of the Commonwealth of
Australia ( Corporations Act )) will be governed by the applicable laws in force in
Australia or the law of another jurisdiction determined in accordance with Australian
law.  Those insolvency laws, as so applied and interpreted, may be different from the
insolvency laws of certain other jurisdictions. In particular, the administration procedure
under  the  Corporations  Act,  which  provides  for  the  potential  re-organisation  of  an
insolvent company, differs significantly from bankruptcy or similar provisions under the
insolvency laws of other non-Australian jurisdictions.  If TFA becomes insolvent, the
treatment and ranking of holders of Notes issued by TFA and TFA s other creditors and
shareholders under the relevant governing law may be different from the treatment and
ranking of those persons if TFA was subject to the bankruptcy or insolvency laws of
another jurisdiction.

Risks relating to the Great East Japan Earthquake

Toyota may be adversely affected by the continuing effects of the Great East Japan
Earthquake and ensuing events

The Japanese economy as a whole suffered significant damage as a result of the Great
East Japan Earthquake that occurred on 11 March 2011 and the ensuing tsunami and
accidents at nuclear power plants in Fukushima Prefecture (collectively, the Great
East Japan Earthquake ).

The Japanese economy has been negatively impacted by damage caused by the Great
East Japan Earthquake, costs associated to rebuild the affected areas and interrupted
infrastructure, including energy shortages as a result of suspended operations at nuclear
power plants throughout Japan. The duration and impact on the Japanese economy are
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unclear. In addition, the nuclear power plants in Fukushima Prefecture are not yet fully
under control and the resolution of the situation at these plants, including timing,
remains unclear. Continuing radiation leakage and further aggravation of the nuclear
power plants are possible. These various issues in connection with the Great East Japan
Earthquake may cause significant and unforeseeable adverse effects on the Japanese
economy, Toyota s operations, and demand for Toyota s products.

Industry and Business Risks - Toyota

The worldwide automotive market is highly competitive

The worldwide automotive market is highly competitive. Toyota faces intense
competition from automotive manufacturers in the markets in which it operates.
Although the global economy is gradually recovering, competition in the automotive
industry has further intensified amidst difficult overall market conditions. In addition,
competition is likely to further intensify in light of further continuing globalisation in
the worldwide automotive industry, possibly resulting in further industry reorganisation.
Factors affecting competition include product quality and features, safety, reliability,
fuel economy, the amount of time required for innovation and development, pricing,
customer service and financing terms. Increased competition may lead to lower vehicle
unit sales, which may result in a further downward price pressure and adversely affect
Toyota s financial condition and results of operations. Toyota s ability to adequately
respond to the recent rapid changes in the automotive market and to maintain its
competitiveness will be fundamental to its future success in existing and new markets
and to maintain its market share. There can be no assurances that Toyota will be able to
compete successfully in the future.

The worldwide automotive industry is highly volatile

Each of the markets in which Toyota competes has been subject to considerable
volatility in demand. Demand for vehicles depends to a large extent on social, political
and economic conditions in a given market and the introduction of new vehicles and
technologies. As Toyota s revenues are derived from sales in markets worldwide,
economic conditions in such markets are particularly important to Toyota. During fiscal
2012, in Japan, despite continuing harsh business conditions due to the impact of the
Great East Japan Earthquake, the economic environment is gradually recovering as a
result of various government policies aimed at economic revival following the disaster.
In the United States, there has been a gradual recovery in economic conditions, but in
Europe, the economic environment is at a standstill, due to the ongoing sovereign debt
crisis, which has also slowed economic development in numerous emerging economies
throughout the world. Toyota was adversely affected by changes in the market
structures of each region with further shifts in consumer demand to compact and low-
priced vehicles. Such weakness in demand for automobiles and changes in market
structure is continuing, and it is unclear how this situation will transition in the future.
Toyota s financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected if the
weakness in demand for automobiles and changes in market structure continue or
progress further. Demand may also be affected by factors directly impacting vehicle
price or the cost of purchasing and operating vehicles such as sales and financing
incentives, prices of raw materials and parts and components, cost of fuel and
governmental regulations (including tariffs, import regulation and other taxes).
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Volatility in demand may lead to lower vehicle unit sales, which may result in a further
downward price pressure and adversely affect Toyota s financial condition and results
of operations.

Toyota s future success depends on its ability to offer new innovative competitively
priced products that meet customer demand on a timely basis

Meeting customer demand by introducing attractive new vehicles and reducing the
amount of time required for product development are critical to automotive
manufacturers. In particular, it is critical to meet customer demand with respect to
quality, safety and reliability. The timely introduction of new vehicle models, at
competitive prices, meeting rapidly changing customer preferences and demand is more
fundamental to Toyota s success than ever, as the automotive market is rapidly
transforming in light of the changing global economy. There is no assurance, however,
that Toyota will adequately and appropriately respond to changing customer preferences
and demand with respect to quality, safety, reliability, styling and other features in a
timely manner. Even if Toyota succeeds in perceiving customer preferences and
demand, there is no assurance that Toyota will be capable of developing and
manufacturing new, price competitive products in a timely manner with its available
technology, intellectual property, sources of raw materials and parts and components,
and production capacity, including cost reduction capacity. Further, there is no
assurance  that  Toyota  will  be  able  to  implement  capital  expenditures  at  the  level  and
times planned by management. Toyota s inability to develop and offer products that
meet customers  preferences and demand with respect to quality, safety, reliability,
styling and other features in a timely manner could result in a lower market share and
reduced sales volumes and margins, and may adversely affect Toyota s financial
condition and results of operations.

Toyota s ability to market and distribute effectively is an integral part of Toyota s
successful sales

Toyota s success in the sale of vehicles depends on its ability to market and distribute
effectively based on distribution networks and sales techniques tailored to the needs of
its customers. There is no assurance that Toyota will be able to develop sales techniques
and distribution networks that effectively adapt to changing customer preferences or
changes in the regulatory environment in the major markets in which it operates.
Toyota s inability to maintain well developed sales techniques and distribution networks
may result in decreased sales and market share and may adversely affect its financial
condition and results of operations.

Toyota s success is significantly impacted by its ability to maintain and develop its
brand image

In the highly competitive automotive industry, it is critical to maintain and develop a
brand image. In order to maintain and develop a brand image, it is necessary to further
increase customers  confidence by providing safe, high quality products that meet
customer preferences and demand. If Toyota is unable to effectively maintain and
develop its brand image as a result of its inability to provide safe, high quality products
or as a result of the failure to promptly implement safety measures such as recalls when
necessary, vehicle unit sales and/or sale prices may decrease, and as a result revenues
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and profits may not increase as expected or may decrease, adversely affecting its
financial condition and results of operations.

Toyota relies on suppliers for the provision of certain supplies including parts,
components and raw materials

Toyota purchases supplies including parts, components and raw materials from a
number of external suppliers located around the world. For some supplies, Toyota relies
on a single supplier or a limited number of suppliers, whose replacement with another
supplier may be difficult. Inability to obtain supplies from a single or limited source
supplier may result in difficulty obtaining supplies and may restrict Toyota s ability to
produce  vehicles.  Furthermore,  even  if  Toyota  were  to  rely  on  a  large  number  of
suppliers, first-tier suppliers with whom Toyota directly transacts may in turn rely on a
single second-tier supplier or limited second-tier suppliers. Toyota s ability to continue
to obtain supplies from its suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner is subject to a
number of factors, some of which are not within Toyota s control. These factors include
the ability of Toyota s suppliers to provide a continued source of supply, and Toyota s
ability to effectively compete and obtain competitive prices from suppliers. A loss of
any single or limited source supplier or inability to obtain supplies from suppliers in a
timely and cost-effective manner could lead to increased costs or delays or suspensions
in Toyota s production and deliveries, which could have an adverse effect on Toyota s
financial condition and results of operations.

The worldwide financial services industry is highly competitive

The worldwide financial services industry is highly competitive. Increased competition
in automobile financing may lead to decreased margins. A decline in Toyota s vehicle
unit sales, an increase in residual value risk due to lower used vehicle price, an increase
in the ratio of credit losses and increased funding costs are factors which may impact
Toyota s financial services operations. If Toyota is unable to adequately respond to the
changes and competition in automobile financing, Toyota s financial services operations
may adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

Toyota s operations and vehicles rely on various digital and information technologies

Toyota depends on various information technology networks and systems, some of
which are managed by third parties, to process, transmit and store electronic
information, including sensitive data, and to manage or support a variety of business
processes and activities, including manufacturing, research and development, supply
chain management, sales and accounting. In addition, Toyota s vehicles may rely on
various digital and information technologies, including information service and driving
assistance functions. Despite security measures, Toyota s digital and information
technology networks and systems may be vulnerable to damage, disruptions or
shutdowns due to attacks by hackers, computer viruses, breaches due to unauthorised
use, errors or malfeasance by employees and others who have or gain access to the
networks and systems Toyota depends on, service failures or bankruptcy or third parties
such as software development or cloud computing vendors, power shortages or outages,
and utility failures or other catastrophic events like natural disasters. Such incidents
could materially disrupt critical operations, disclose sensitive data, interfere with
information services and driving  assistance functions in Toyota s vehicles, and/or give
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rise to legal claims or proceedings, liability or regulatory penalties under applicable
laws, which could have an adverse effect on Toyota s brand image and its financial
condition and results of operations.

Financial Market and Economic Risks  Toyota

Toyota s operations are subject to currency and interest rate fluctuations

Toyota is sensitive to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and is principally
exposed to fluctuations in the value of the Japanese yen, the U.S. dollar and the euro
and, to a lesser extent, the Australian dollar, the Canadian dollar and the British pound.
Toyota s consolidated financial statements, which are presented in Japanese yen, are
affected by foreign currency exchange fluctuations through both translation risk and
transaction risk. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates may affect Toyota s
pricing of products sold and materials purchased in foreign currencies. In particular,
strengthening of the Japanese yen against the U.S. dollar can have an adverse effect on
Toyota s operating results. The Japanese yen has been appreciating against major
currencies including the U.S. dollar. If the Japanese yen continues to appreciate against
major currencies, including the U.S. dollar, Toyota s financial condition and results of
operations may be adversely affected.

Toyota believes that its use of certain derivative financial instruments including interest
rate swaps and increased localised production of its products have reduced, but not
eliminated, the effects of interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.
Nonetheless, a negative impact resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates and changes in interest rates may adversely affect Toyota s financial condition and
results of operations.

High prices of raw materials and strong pressure on Toyota s suppliers could
negatively impact Toyota s profitability

Increases in prices for raw materials that Toyota and Toyota s suppliers use in
manufacturing their products or parts and components such as steel, precious metals,
non-ferrous alloys including aluminium, and plastic parts, may lead to higher
production costs for parts and components. This could, in turn, negatively impact
Toyota s future profitability because Toyota may not be able to pass all those costs on
to its customers or require its suppliers to absorb such costs.

The downturn in the financial markets could adversely affect Toyota s ability to raise
capital

Should the world economy suddenly deteriorate, a number of financial institutions and
investors will face difficulties in providing capital to the financial markets at levels
corresponding  to  their  own  financial  capacity,  and,  as  a  result,  there  is  a  risk  that
companies may not be able to raise capital under terms that they would expect to
receive with their creditworthiness. If Toyota is unable to raise the necessary capital
under appropriate conditions on a timely basis, Toyota s financial condition and results
of operations may be adversely affected.
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Political, Regulatory, Legal and Other Risks  Toyota

The automotive industry is subject to various governmental regulations

The worldwide automotive industry is subject to various laws and governmental
regulations including those related to vehicle safety and environmental matters such as
emission levels, fuel economy, noise and pollution. In particular, automotive
manufacturers such as Toyota are required to implement safety measures such as recalls
for  vehicles  that  do  not  or  may  not  comply  with  the  safety  standards  of  laws  and
governmental regulations. In addition, Toyota may, in order to reassure its customers of
the safety of Toyota s vehicles, decide to voluntarily implement recalls or other safety
measures  even  if  the  vehicle  complies  with  the  safety  standards  of  relevant  laws  and
governmental regulations. Many governments also impose tariffs and other trade
barriers, taxes and levies, or enact price or exchange controls. Toyota has incurred, and
expects to incur in the future, significant costs in complying with these regulations. If
Toyota launches products that result in safety measures such as recalls, Toyota may
incur various costs including significant costs for free repairs. Furthermore, new
legislation or changes in existing legislation may also subject Toyota to additional
expenses in the future. If Toyota incurs significant costs related to implementing safety
measures or meeting laws and governmental regulations, Toyota s financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected.

Toyota may become subject to various legal proceedings

As an automotive manufacturer, Toyota may become subject to legal proceedings in
respect of various issues, including product liability and infringement of intellectual
property. Toyota may also be subject to legal proceedings brought by its shareholders
and governmental proceedings and investigations. Toyota is in fact currently subject to
a number of pending legal proceedings and government investigations. A negative
outcome in one or more of these pending legal proceedings could adversely affect
Toyota s financial condition and results of operations.

Toyota may be adversely affected by natural calamities, political and economic
instability, fuel shortages or interruptions in social infrastructure, wars, terrorism and
labour strikes

Toyota is subject to various risks associated with conducting business worldwide. These
risks include natural calamities, political and economic instability, fuel shortages,
interruption in social infrastructure including energy supply, transportation systems, gas,
water or communication systems resulting from natural hazards or technological
hazards, wars, terrorism, labour strikes and work stoppages. Should the major markets
in which Toyota purchases materials, parts and components and supplies for the
manufacture of Toyota products or in which Toyota s products are produced, distributed
or sold be affected by any of these events, it may result in disruptions and delays in the
operations of Toyota s business. Should significant or prolonged disruptions or delays
related to Toyota s business operations occur, it may adversely affect Toyota s financial
condition and results of operations.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
The directors present this report on the consolidated entity consisting of Toyota Finance Australia Limited (“the 
company”) and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the year ended 31 March 2012. 
 

1. DIRECTORS  
 

The directors of the company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are: 
 
Current Directors 

J. R. Chandler, a director since 2007; Managing Director since June 2009 
H. Ikoma, a director since 2007 
Y. Yasuda, a director since 2007 
E. Hirano, a director since 2007 
I. Ritchens, a director since 2010 
D. Miles, a director since 2011 
N. Kojima, appointed director in February 2012 
Y. Yomoda, appointed director in February 2012 
M. Callachor, appointed director in February 2012 
Y. Toura as alternate director to E. Hirano, appointed alternate director in February 2012 
Y. Nakano as alternate director to N. Kojima, appointed alternate director in February 2012 
J. Zaitsu as alternate director to Y. Yomoda, appointed alternate director in February 2012 

 
Former Directors 

T. Matsuno, resigned as a director December 2011 
D. Buttner, resigned as a director December 2011 
Y. Toura, resigned as a director February 2012 
Y. Nakano, ceased to be alternate director for T. Matsuno, December 2011 
J. Zaitsu, ceased to be alternate director for E. Hirano, February 2012 
 

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 
 

During the year, the principal continuing activities of the consolidated entity were: 

• To finance the acquisition of motor vehicles by customers in the form of leasing, term purchase, consumer 
and commercial loans; 

• To provide bailment facilities and commercial loans to motor dealers; 

• To provide operating lease and fleet management services to customers; and 

• To administer and manage extended warranty and insurance products. 
 
There were no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the period. 
 

3. DIVIDENDS 
 

During the year ended 31 March 2012 a final dividend of $21,033,000 (31 March 2011: $29,290,500) and   
an interim dividend of $9,674,139 (31 March 2011: $0) were declared and paid. 

 
4. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

 
The consolidated net profit of the consolidated entity for the year ended 31 March 2012 was $85,340,000 (31 
March  2011: $91,943,000) after deducting income tax expense of  $30,249,000 (31 March 2011: $31,281,000). 
 

5. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN STATE OF AFFAIRS 
 
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity that occurred during the 
financial year under review. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



TOYOTA FINANCE AUSTRALIA LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES                                            
ABN 48 002 435 181 

3 

 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued) 
 
6. ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION  
 

The operations of the company are not subject to any particular and significant environmental regulation. 
 
7. MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
 

Since the end of the financial year, the directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt 
with in the report or the consolidated accounts that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of 
the consolidated entity, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in 
subsequent financial periods. 

 
8. LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 

The company expects its underlying operations to operate profitably in the financial year ending 31 March 2013, 
although, fluctuations in the fair value and translation of some financial instruments resulting in unrealised gains 
or losses recognised through the profit or loss may produce anomalous results. 

 
Further information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results 
of operations have not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in 
unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity. 
 

9.        SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS AND THE MOST HIGHLY REMUNERATED 
OFFICERS 

 
 Options over issued ordinary shares of the ultimate chief entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan, granted 
during or since the end of the financial year to any directors or the five most highly remunerated officers of the 
company and consolidated entity as part of their remuneration are as follows: 
 

 31 March 2012 
Unexercised Options 

31 March 2011 
Unexercised Options 

Directors   

J. R. Chandler, Managing Director 20 20 * 

 
* The options were granted under the Toyota Motor Corporation Global Incentive Plan on 1 August 2008.  An 
option has a right to acquire 100 common shares. 

 
Shares under option 
Issued ordinary shares of the ultimate chief entity, being Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan under option at the 
date of this report are as follows: 
 

 

Date 
options 
granted 

 

 
Date 
exercisable 

 

 
Expiry 
date 

Issue 
price 

of 
shares 

 
Balance at 
start of the 

period 

 
Exercised 
during the 

period 

 
Granted 

during the 
period 

 
Balance at 
end of the 

period 

2 Aug 2010 1 Aug 2012 31 Jul 2018 (A) 2,000 - - 2,000 

    2,000 - - 2,000 

 
(A)  The exercise price of options is based on the price equal to 1.025 times the closing price of Toyota Motor Corporation common shares on 

the Tokyo Stock Exchange as at the date the options were granted. 

 
10.      DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE 
  

During the financial year, the company paid a premium of $42,868 to insure the officers of the company and its 
controlled entities including the directors, company secretaries, and other officers against allegations of 
wrongdoing  (other than intentional wrongdoing). 

 
During the year, the company has entered into a deed of access and indemnity with each new director whereby it 
has agreed to: 
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FINANCIAL REPORT - 31 MARCH 2012 

 
These financial statements cover the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity comprising Toyota 
Finance Australia Limited, as chief entity, and the entities it controlled at the end, or during the financial year. 
  
Toyota Finance Australia Limited (‘the company’) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in 
Australia.  Its registered office and principal place of business is: 
 

Toyota Finance Australia Limited 
Level 9, 207 Pacific Highway 
ST. LEONARDS, NSW, 2065 

 
A description of the nature of the entity’s principal activities is included in the directors’ report on page 2, which is not 
part of the financial statements. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 29 June 2012. The company has the power to 
amend and reissue the financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Note 2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Interest and similar revenue 2 808,443               707,736               

Interest expense and similar charges 2 (561,664)              (482,203)              

Net financing income 246,779               225,533               

Other income 3 15,923                 12,920                 

Net operating income 262,702               238,453               

Bad and doubtful debts expense 5 (37,800)                (37,802)                

Employee benefits expense (60,285)                (46,531)                

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 (8,086)                  (4,176)                  

IT and communication expense (7,499)                  (6,032)                  

Sales and marketing expense (22,272)                (13,522)                

Occupancy (4,744)                  (3,852)                  

Other expenses (13,689)                (11,125)                
Share of net profits of associates accounted for using 

the equity method 10 7,262                   7,811                   

Profit before income tax 115,589               123,224               

Income tax expense 6 (30,249)                (31,281)                

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 85,340                 91,943                 

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of foreign 19  

operations  3,566                   (2,541)                  

Total comprehensive income

attributable to the owners of the parent 88,906                 89,402                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2012

Note 2012 2011
$'000 $'000

Assets
       Cash and cash equivalents 7 179,200               946,999               
       Loans and receivables 8 10,694,462          9,203,879             
       Derivative financial instruments 9 57,506                 19,135                 
       Investments accounted for using the equity method 10 51,754                 50,600                 
       Property, plant and equipment 11 39,098                 30,092                 
       Deferred tax assets 12 98,474                 82,126                 
       Other assets 13 30,410                 44,845                 
Total assets 11,150,904          10,377,676          

Liabilities
       Due to banks and other financial institutions 14 5,644,844            4,133,107            
       Bonds and commercial papers 15 4,017,841            4,611,279            
       Derivative financial instruments 9 341,293               587,239               
       Deferred tax liabilities 16 79,874                 96,769                 
       Other liabilities 17 367,961               308,390                
Total liabilities 10,451,813          9,736,784            
Net assets 699,091               640,892               

Equity
       Contributed Equity 18 120,000               120,000               
       Reserves 19 (4,608)                  (8,174)                  
       Retained Earnings 20 583,699               529,066               
Total Equity 699,091               640,892               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

 Attributable to owners of 

 Toyota Finance Australia Limited 

   

Contributed  Retained

Note Equity Reserves Earnings Total Equity

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 April 2011 120,000              (8,174)              529,066       640,892             

Profit for the year -                          -                       85,340         85,340               

Other comprehensive income 19 -                          3,566                -                  3,566                 

Total comprehensive income for the 

year -                          3,566                85,340         88,906               

      

Transactions with owners in their 

capacity as owners:

   Contributed equity -                          -                       -                  -                        

   Dividends provided for and paid 20 -                          -                       (30,707)       (30,707)             

Balance at 31 March 2012 120,000              (4,608)              583,699       699,091             

Balance at 1 April 2010 120,000              (5,633)              466,413       580,780             

Profit for the year -                          -                       91,943         91,943               

Other comprehensive income 19 -                          (2,541)              -                  (2,541)               

Total comprehensive income for the 

year -                          (2,541)              91,943         89,402               

     

Transactions with owners in their 

capacity as owners:

   Contributed equity -                          -                       -                  -                        

   Dividends provided for and paid 20 -                          -                       (29,290)       (29,290)             

Balance at 31 March 2011 120,000              (8,174)              529,066       640,892             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities

       Net cash outflow from lending and other              

       operating activities (1,622,361)           (1,509,098)           

       Interest received 868,314               754,224               

       Interest paid (524,065)              (465,455)              

       Income taxes paid (32,197)                1,898                   

Net cash outflow from operating activities (1,310,309)           (1,218,431)           

Cash flows from investing activities

       Dividend received from associate 9,674                   -                           

       Payments for property, plant and equipment (17,092)                (14,176)                

 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (7,418)                  (14,176)                

Cash flows from financing activities

       Dividends paid (30,707)                (29,290)                

       Net proceeds from borrowings 580,635               1,990,863            

 

Net cash inflow from financing activities 549,928               1,961,573            

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalent (767,799)              728,966               

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 946,999               218,033               

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 179,200               946,999               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These    
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial 
statements are for the consolidated entity consisting of Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its subsidiaries. 
 

 (a) Basis of preparation 
 
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 

2001. Toyota Finance Australia Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial 
statements. 
 
Compliance with IFRS 
The consolidated financial statements of the Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its controlled entities also 
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). 
 
Historical cost convention 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the 
revaluation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (derivatives). 
 
 

(b) Principles of consolidation 
 
(i) Subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Toyota Finance 
Australia Limited (“company” or “parent entity”) as at 31 March 2012 and the results of all subsidiaries for the 
year then ended. Toyota Finance Australia Limited and its controlled entities together are referred to in the 
financial statements as the consolidated entity. 
 
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the group has the power to govern the 
financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting 
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are 
considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. 
 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They 
are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 
 
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between consolidated entities are 
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of 
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the parent entity. 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

 

(b) Principles of consolidation (continued) 
 

(ii) Associates 

Associates are all entities over which the consolidated entity has significant influence but not control, generally 
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are 
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being 
recognised at cost. 
 
The consolidated entity’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss, 
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income. The 
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends 
receivable from associates are recognised in the consolidated financial statements as a reduction against the 
carrying amount of the investment. 
 
When the consolidated entity’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the consolidated entity does not recognise further losses, 
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of its associate. 
 
Unrealised gains on transactions between the consolidated entity and its associates are eliminated to the extent of 
the consolidated entity’s interest in associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction 
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed 
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the consolidated entity. 
 

(c) Foreign currency translation 
 
(i) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of each of the consolidated entities are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the company’s functional and presentation 
currency. 
 
On consolidation, the exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the foreign entity 
from functional to presentation currency is recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 
(ii) Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions 
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Foreign exchange gains and losses that relates to borrowings are presented in the income statement, within 
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement on a net basis 
within other income or other expenses. 
 

(d) Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue 
are net of returns, trade allowances and duties and taxes paid.   
 
The consolidated entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met. Revenue is recognised 
for the major business activities as follows: 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(d) Revenue recognition (continued) 
 

(i) Term Loans 

Interest income arising from term loans is recognised over the period of the term loan using the effective interest 
rate method. Income derived from term loans is included in “other loans and receivables” within “interest and 
similar income” 
 
(ii) Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessor 

 

Finance Leases 

Interest income derived from finance leases is recognised over the period of the contract using the effective 
interest rate method. Income derived from finance leases is included in “lease income” within “interest and 
similar income”. 
 

Operating Leases 

Lease rentals receivable on operating leases are recognised on a systematic basis over the effective lease term. 
Income derived from operating leases is included in “lease income” within “interest and similar income”. 
 
 (iii)   Investment Allowance 
 
The investment allowance for business legislation received Royal Assent on 22 May 2009. The financial effect of 
the legislation has been initially recognised in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010. The 
investment allowance is recognised as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance the consolidated 
entity will comply with the conditions attached to the investment allowance and it will be received. The 
investment allowance is subsequently recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the effective lease 
term. 
 

(e) Income tax 
 
The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.  
 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and 
tax bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal 
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax 
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively 
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1.        Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(e)   Income tax (continued) 
 

Tax consolidation legislation 

The company and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entity have implemented the tax consolidation 
legislation from 1 April 2003 in association with other Australian incorporated entities with common ownership. 
 
As a consequence, the company is no longer subject to income tax and does not recognise any current tax 
balances in its own financial statements unless the Head Entity (Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited) is 
in default of its obligations, or a default is probable, under the tax consolidation legislation, or the tax amounts 
relate to taxable income incurred prior to the implementation of the tax consolidation regime. Deferred tax 
balances are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with UIG 1052 Tax Consolidation 

Accounting. Amounts receivable or payable under a tax funding agreement with the Head Entity are recognised 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as tax-related amounts receivable and payable. 
 

(f) Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessee 
 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the 
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

 

(g) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts for 
the purpose of the cash flow statement. 
 

(h) Investments and other financial instruments 
 

Classification 

The consolidated entity classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets or financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and held-to-maturity investments. The 
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the 
classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date. 
 
(i) Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

This category consists of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, representing 
the consolidated entity’s outstanding derivatives balances. Derivatives are categorised as financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Refer to note 1(k) for details of accounting policy. 
 
(ii) Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They arise when the consolidated entity provides money, goods or services directly to a 
debtor with no intention of selling the loans and receivables. Retail and wholesale finance receivables are 
included in loans and receivables in the balance sheet. Refer also to note 1(i). 
 
(iii) Held-to-maturity investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities that the consolidated entity’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. 
 
The consolidated entity holds no financial instrument that it classifies as available-for-sale financial assets. 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(h)   Investments and other financial instruments (continued) 
 

Recognition and derecognition 

Purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised on settlement date – the date on which the 
consolidated entity settles the purchase or sale of the asset. Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair 
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets  
or financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit and loss are initially recognised at fair value and 
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the consolidated entity has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations 
specified in the contracts are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

 

Subsequent measurement 
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss’ category are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 
 

Fair value 
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid/offer prices. If the market for a financial asset is 
not active (and for unlisted securities), the consolidated entity establishes fair value by using valuation 
techniques. These include reference to the fair values of recent arm’s length transactions, involving the same 
instruments or other instruments that are substantially the same or discounted cash flow analysis. 

 

(i) Loans and receivables 
 
(i) Term Loans 

Unearned finance income is the portion of charges written into finance receivable agreements which will be 
earned in the future. 
 
(ii) Leased assets where the consolidated entity is the lessor 

 

Finance Leases 

Finance leases, in which the consolidated entity is the lessor, are included in ‘loans and receivables’ in the 
statement of financial position. 
 
Unearned finance income is the portion of charges written into finance receivable agreements which will be 
earned in the future. 
 

Operating Leases 

Operating leases, in which the consolidated entity is the lessor, are included in loans and receivables.   
 
Assets held under operating leases are depreciated on a systematic basis over the term of the lease to its estimated 
residual value. Depreciation expense is included within lease income and within ‘interest and similar revenue’.  
 
(iii) Bailment stock 

The consolidated entity provides dealer floor plan finance arrangements to motor dealers under which vehicles 
are owned by the consolidated entity but held at the dealers’ premises as bailment stock. 
 
Whilst the legal form of the transactions is that the vehicles are owned by the consolidated entity, the substance 
of the transactions is that of loans to the dealers. Accordingly, the balances are disclosed as part of ‘loans and 
receivables’ in the statement of financial position. 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

           (i)    Loans and receivables (continued) 
 

(iv)  Securitisation 
The “Loans and receivables” includes a portion of the consolidated entity’s term loans under securitisation within  
special purpose vehicles. The terms of the transfer of these loans do not meet the criteria for derecognition under 
AASB 139 and are therefore recognised on the consolidated entity’s statement of financial position. AASB 127 
and UIG-Interpretation 112 define various indicators of control, such as activities, decision-making, benefits, and 
risks which require the parent entity to consolidate the securitisation special purpose vehicle should specific 
conditions be met. 
               

(j) Provision for impairment of loans and receivables 
 
Collectability of loans and receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Loans and receivables which are known 
to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for impairment of loans and receivables is established when there 
is objective evidence that the consolidated entity expect not to be able to collect all amounts due according to the 
original terms of the contract. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)  
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial 
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

(k) Derivatives 
 
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The derivatives have not been 
designated as hedging instruments; consequently, changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. This may, to the extent that they are not offset by the translation of the items 
economically hedged, introduce volatility in the consolidated entity’s profit or loss and produce anomalous 
results. 
 
 

(l) Fair value estimation 
 
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure 
purposes. The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives) is 
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial 
instruments held by the company is the bid/offer price. 
 
The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter 
derivatives) is determined using discounted cash flow valuation techniques. In particular, the fair value of interest 
rate swaps and cross currency swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows and the 
fair value of foreign exchange contracts is determined using the forward exchange market rates at the end of the 
reporting period. 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(m) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure 
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the consolidated 
entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit 
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. 
 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, 
net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

 

Asset Class Method Useful Life 

Furnitures and fittings Straight-line 3-5 years 

 
Leasehold improvements 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the 
estimated useful life of the improvement to the consolidated entity, whichever is the shorter. 
 
Computer software development 

Capitalised computer software development is recognised when it is probable that the project (i) will be 
completed considering its commercial and technical feasibility, (ii) will contribute to future period financial 
benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reductions; and (iii) its costs can be measured reliably. The 
expenditure capitalised comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services and direct 
labour. Capitalised computer software development is amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use 
on a straight-line basis over its useful life, which varies from 4 to 5 years. 
 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. 
 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(m)). 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.  These are included 
in profit or loss.  
 

(n) Impairment of assets 
 
Assets that are subject to amortisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s fair value less costs to resell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other asset groups (cash generating units). 
 

(o) Bonds and commercial paper 
 
Bonds and commercial paper are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bonds and 
commercial paper are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the period of the bonds 
or commercial paper using the effective interest method. 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(p) Financial instrument transaction costs 
 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability 
are included in the initial recognition of the financial instruments. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at 
fair value through the profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.   
 

(q) Employee benefits 
 
(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the end of 
each reporting period are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date 
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating 
sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at rates paid or payable. 
 
(ii) Long service leave 

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the 
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end 
of each reporting period. Consideration is given at expected future wage and salary levels, experience of 
employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the 
reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash flows. 
 
(iii) Retirement benefit obligations 

All employees of the consolidated entity are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death from the 
consolidated entity’s superannuation plan. The consolidated entity has a defined contribution plan. The defined 
contribution plan receives fixed contributions from the consolidated entity and the consolidated entity’s legal and 
constructive obligation is limited to these contributions. 
 
Contributions to the defined contribution fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid 
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that cash refund, or a reduction in the future payments is 
available. 
 

(r) Dividends 
 
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared on or before the end of the year but not distributed at 
the end of each reporting period. 
 

(s) Segment reporting 
 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker who is responsible for allocating resources and 
assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified as the board of directors. 
 

(t)    Goods and services tax (GST) 
 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is 
not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the 
asset or as part of the expense. 
 
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of 
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position. 
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

(t)    Goods and services tax (GST) (continued) 
 
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or 
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating 
cash flow. 
 

(u) Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
 
The preparation of the financial report requires the making of estimations and assumptions that affect the 
recognised amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 1(j). 
 

(v) Rounding of amounts 
 
The company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100, issued by the Australian Securities and Investments 
Commission, relating to the “rounding off” of amounts in the financial report. Amounts in the financial report 
have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearest thousand dollars, or in certain cases, the 
nearest dollar. 

 

(w) New and revised accounting standards and interpretations  
 

Certain new or revised standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the    
31 March 2012 financial year. The company’s assessment of the impact of the relevant new standards and 
interpretations is set out below. 
 

• AASB 9 Financial Instruments, AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from AASB 9 and AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 (December 2010) (effective from 1 January 2013*). 
 
AASB 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of 
financial assets and financial liabilities. The standard is not applicable until 1 January 2013* but is 
available for early adoption. The consolidated entity has not yet decided when to adopt the new 
standard, and will still need to review and determine its impact to the financial statements. 
 
* In December 2011, the IASB delayed the application date of IFRS 9 to 1 January 2015. The AASB 
is expected to make an equivalent amendment to AASB 9 shortly. 

 

• AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disclosure of 
Interests in Other Entities, revised AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures and AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards (effective 1 
January 2013). 
 
AASB 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements, and Interpretation 12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities. The 
core principle that a consolidated entity presents a parent and its subsidiaries as if they are a single 
economic entity remains unchanged, as do the mechanics of consolidation. However, the standard 
introduces a single definition of control that applies to all entities. It focuses on the need to have both 
power and rights or exposure to variable returns. Power is the current ability to direct the activities that 
significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and can be positive, negative or both. Control exists 
when the investor can use its power to affect the amount of its returns. There is also new guidance on 
participating and protective rights and on agent/principal relationships. 
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(w) New and revised accounting standards and interpretations (continued) 
 
  AASB 11 introduces a principles based approach to accounting for joint arrangements. The focus is 

no longer on the legal structure of joint arrangements, but rather on how rights and obligations are 
shared by the parties to the joint arrangement. Based on the assessment of rights and obligations, a 
joint arrangement will be classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture. Joint ventures are 
accounted for using the equity method, and the choice to proportionately consolidate will no longer be 
permitted. Parties to a joint operation will account their share of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities in much the same way as under the previous standard. AASB 11 also provides guidance for 
parties that participate in joint arrangements but do not share joint control. 

  
  AASB 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new standards, AASB 

10 and AASB 11, and replaces the disclosure requirements currently found in AASB 127 and AASB 
128. 

  
 The consolidated entity will review and determine the impact of the above mentioned amendments on 
the financial statements. The consolidated entity does not expect to adopt the new standards before 
their operative date. They would therefore be first applied in the financial statements for the annual 
reporting period ending 31 March 2014. 

  

• AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 13 (effective 1 January 2013) 
 
AASB 13 was released in September 2011. It explains how to measure fair value and aims to enhance 
fair value disclosures. The consolidated entity has yet to determine which, if any, of its current 
measurement techniques will have to change as a result of the new guidance. It is therefore not 
possible to state the impact, if any, of the new rules on any of the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements. However, application of the new standard will impact the type of information disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements.  
 
The consolidated entity does not intend to adopt the new standard before its operative date, which 
means that it would be first applied in the annual reporting period ending 31 March 2014. 
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

2. Interest and similar revenue and interest expense and 

similar charges

Interest and similar revenue

Cash and cash equivalents 28,099                   23,185                 
Lease income 134,407                 116,409               
Other loans and receivables 704,437                 616,710               
Interest revenue 866,943                 756,304               

Fee income 64,626                   49,977                 
Fee expense (123,126)                (98,545)                

Interest and similar revenue 808,443                 707,736               

Interest expense and similar charges  
 

Due to banks and other financial institutions 168,397                 121,663               
Bonds and commercial paper 202,793                 207,053               
Borrowings from affiliated entity 294                        -                           

Net loss/(gain) on translation of foreign currency debt 24,015                   (277,609)              

Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments at fair 

value through profit or loss 159,421                 424,826               
Transaction costs 6,744                     6,270                   

Interest expense and similar charges 561,664                 482,203               
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

3. Other Income

Net gain on disposal of leased and fixed assets 6,543                3,517                

Commission and other income 9,380                9,403                

15,923              12,920              

 
 
 

4. Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Profit before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

Depreciation

   Leasehold improvements 608                   283                   

   Plant and equipment 1,450                807                   

Total depreciation 2,058                1,090                

Amortisation

   Computer software development 6,028                3,086                

Total Amortisation 6,028                3,086                

Total depreciation and amortisation expense 8,086                4,176                

Impairment losses

   Computer software development 1                       546                   

Defined contribution superannuation expense 4,242                3,689                
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

5. Impairment of loans and receivables

(i) Provision for impairment of loans and receivables

Opening balance 130,134             108,466             

Bad debts written off (27,138) (22,666)

Increase in provision 42,863               44,334               

Closing balance 145,859             130,134             

(ii) Bad and doubtful debts expense

Recovery of bad debts written off (5,063) (6,532)

Increase in provision 42,863               44,334               

Total bad and doubtful debts expense 37,800               37,802               

 
 
 
6. Income tax expense

a) Current tax 63,267              29,683              
Deferred tax (33,243)            3,933                
Government Grants and Incentives* -                       2,844                
Under provision in prior year 225                   (5,179)              
Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 30,249              31,281              

Deferred income tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:
(Increase) in deferred tax assets (note 12) (16,348)            (25,694)            
(Decrease)/Increase in deferred tax liabilities (note 16) (16,895)            29,627              

(33,243)            3,933                

b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable:

Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 115,589            123,224            
Prima facie tax payable @ 30% 34,677              36,967              

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable 

income:
Share of net profit of associate (2,179)              (2,343)              
Sundry items (2,474)              1,836                

30,024              36,460              

Under provision in prior year 225                   (5,179)              

Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations 30,249              31,281              

  

* The financial effect of the investment allowance business legislation was within "interest and similar revenue" in the 

current year amounting to $7.1 million (2011: $10.8 million).
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6.      Income tax expense (continued) 

 
(c) Tax consolidation legislation 

 
The company and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entity (the ‘consolidated entity’) have implemented the 
income tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 in association with other Australian incorporated entities 
with a common ownership.  The accounting policy in relation to this legislation is set out in note 1(e). 
 
On adoption of the income tax consolidation legislation, the entities in the income tax consolidated group entered 
into an income tax sharing agreement which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and several liability for 
income tax of the consolidated entity in the case of a default by the head entity, Toyota Motor Corporation 
Australia Limited. 
 
The consolidated entity has also entered into an income  tax funding agreement under which the consolidated entity 
fully compensates the head entity for any current income tax payable assumed and is compensated by the head 
entity for any current income tax receivable.  The funding amounts are determined by reference to the amounts 
recognised in the consolidated entity’s financial statements. 
 
The amounts receivable/payable under the income tax funding agreement is due upon receipt of the funding advice 
from the head entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each financial year.  The head entity 
may also require payment of interim funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay income tax instalments. 

 
 

Consolidated Consolidated

 2012 2011

$'000 $'000

7. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 3                            2                          

Cash in bank 197                        25,997                 

Deposits at call 179,000                 921,000               
179,200                 946,999               
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

8. Loans and receivables

Bailment stock 1,755,104                  1,453,792               

Motor vehicles under operating lease* 1,220,197                  1,056,981               

Term Loans** 8,484,329                  7,286,317               

Finance Leases 950,631                     899,183                  

Gross loans and receivables 12,410,261                10,696,273             

Accumulated depreciation on motor vehicles
under operating lease (374,703)                   (273,557)                

Unearned income*** (1,195,237)                (1,088,703)             

Net loans and receivables (net of unearned income) 10,840,321                9,334,013               

Provision for impairment of loans and receivables (145,859)                   (130,134)                

Net loans and receivables 10,694,462                9,203,879               

 

Maturity analysis

(net of unearned income)

At call 1,847,310                  1,531,593               

Not longer than 3 months 586,361                     555,370                  

Longer than 3 months and not longer than 12 months 1,892,624                  1,649,010               

Longer than 1 year not longer than 5 years 6,255,702                  5,476,235               

Longer than 5 years 258,324                     121,805                  

10,840,321                9,334,013               

 
 
* Motor vehicles under operating lease is inclusive of carrying value of vehicles which ceased to be rented and are held 
for sale amounting to $8.2 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: $8.4 million).  
 
** As at 31 March 2012 the special purpose entities held $2,269.3 million (2011: $1,382.9 million) of the consolidated 
entity’s term loans under securitisation.  Such securitised loans have varied maturity dates ranging from one month to 
five years.   
 
Securitised loans maturing within one year amounted to $695.9 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: $486.7 million). 
 
*** Unearned income as at 31 March 2012 is inclusive of net unamortised deferred revenue and expenses amounting to 
$113.6 million (31 March 2011: $89.6 million), unearned finance income on finance leases amounting to $106.9 million 
(31 March 2011: $101.6 million) and unearned finance income on term loans amounting to $1,201.9 million (31 March 
2011: $1,076.7 million). There is no unearned income on bailment stock.                                                                                                   
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

9. Derivative financial instruments

Assets

Interest rate swap contracts 15,616                   15,928                 

Cross currency swap contracts 25,460                   3,207                   

Forward foreign exchange contracts 16,430                   -                           

Liabilities

Interest rate swap contracts 72,548                   31,489                 

Cross currency swap contracts 267,444                 550,920               

Forward foreign exchange contracts 1,301                     4,830                   

Total derivative financial instrument assets - held at fair value                     57,506                   19,135 

Total derivative financial instrument liabilities - held at fair 

value                   341,293                 587,239 
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10. Investments in associates

Country of

Name of entity incorporation

2012 2011 2012 2011

$'000 $'000 % %

(a) Movement in carrying amount

Unlisted

Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited New Zealand

Carrying amount at 1 April 50,600     45,330           45.45            45.45    

Share of profits after income tax 7,262       7,811             

Dividends received (9,674)      -                     

Net exchange differences on translation of 

foreign associate entity 3,566       (2,541)            
Carrying amount at 31 March 51,754     50,600           

(b) Share of associates' profits

Profit before income tax 10,018     10,217           

Income tax expense (2,756)      (2,406)            

Profit after income tax 7,262       7,811             

(c) Summarised financial information of associates

Consolidated entity's share of:

Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2012

Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited 393,557   341,139         54,718          7,262    

2011

Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited 366,776   315,512         54,230          7,811    

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

(d) Share of associates expenditure commitments

Lease commitments 1,277       1,248             

Ownership

Consolidated interest

The principal activities of Toyota Finance New Zealand Limited during the period were:

   - to finance motor vehicle acquisitions in the form of leasing, term purchase, consumer and commercial loans;

   - to provide bailment facilities and commercial loans to Toyota dealers;

   - the marketing of vehicle and finance related insurance products;

Consolidated

Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting 

and are carried at cost.

   - the provision of retail finance and related products for pleasure boats; and

   - the provision unsecured personal loans.

Investments in associates are accounted for at cost in the financial statements of the Toyota Finance Australia Limited parent 

entity.  Dividends received from associates are recognised in the parent entity’s profit or loss, rather than being deducted 

from the carrying amount of these investments. At 31 March 2012 the carrying amount of the investment in Toyota Finance 

New Zealand Limited was $4,284,000 (31 March 2011: $4,284,000), reserves of the parent entity were nil (31 March 2011: 

nil) and net profit of the parent entity was $2,412,000 higher than consolidated net profit (31 March 2011: $7,811,000 

lower). As a result retained earnings of the parent entity at 31 March 2012 is $52,078,000 lower than consolidated retained 

earnings (31 March 2011: $54,490,000 lower).
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11. Property, plant and equipment

 
Depreciation/  

Cost Amortisation Carrying Value
Consolidated  2012 $'000 $'000 $'000

Leasehold improvements 5,194                     2,850                2,344                   
Plant and equipment 17,322                   15,098              2,223                   
Computer software development 81,103                   46,572              34,531                 

103,619                 64,520              39,098                 

 
Depreciation/  

Cost Amortisation Carrying Value
Consolidated  2011 $'000 $'000 $'000

Leasehold improvements 3,404                     2,243                1,161                   
Plant and equipment 15,183                   13,467              1,716                   
Computer software development 67,777                   40,562              27,215                 

86,364                   56,272              30,092                 

 Leasehold 

improvements 

 Plant and 

equipment 

 Computer 

software 

development 
Consolidated  2012 $'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying value at 1 April 1,161                     1,716                27,215                 

Additions 1,790                     1,957                13,345                 

Disposals -                             -                       -                           

Depreciation / amortisation expense (608)                       (1,450)              (6,028)                  

Impairment loss -                             -                       (1)                         

Carrying value at 31 March 2,344                     2,223                34,531                 

 Leasehold 

improvements 

 Plant and 

equipment 

 Computer 

software 

development 
Consolidated  2011 $'000 $'000 $'000

Carrying value at 1 April 729                        1,624                18,285                 

Additions 715                        899                   12,562                 

Disposals -                             -                       -                           

Depreciation / amortisation expense (283)                       (807)                 (3,086)                  

Impairment loss -                             -                       (546)                     

Carrying value at 31 March 1,161                      1,716                27,215                 
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

12. Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Provision for impairment of loans and receivables 43,758              39,040              

Employee entitlements 1,825                1,592                

Financial instruments 14,840              (346)                 

Deferred origination fees 7,975                9,660                

Manufacturers and other subvention 11,224              20,566              

Accrued expenses 16,156              8,656                

Sundry items 2,696                2,958                
98,474              82,126              

 
 
13.  Other assets

Other debtors and prepayments 29,462              42,525              
Accrued interest receivable on cash and cash equivalent 948                   2,320                

30,410              44,845              
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

14. Due to banks and other financial institutions

Banks and other financial institutions 5,115,845                4,133,107             
Affiliated entity 528,999                   -                           

5,644,844                4,133,107             

Maturity analysis

At call -                             -                           
Not longer than 3 months 727,300                   162,141                
Longer than 3 months and not longer than 12 months 1,133,220                732,691                
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 3,784,324                3,238,275             

5,644,844                4,133,107             

  
 

Included in the “Due to banks and other financial institutions” is securitised debt of $2,234.8 million as at 31 
March 2012 (2011: $1,382.9 million) representing the value of term loans held by the special purpose entities. The 
special purpose entities issued interest bearing senior and subordinated notes amounting to $1,885.9 million and  
$348.8 million, respectively as at 31 March 2012 (2011: $1,151.3 million and $231.6 million, respectively).  The 
term loans are pledged as collateral for the senior and subordinated notes.  The company provides an unconditional 
and irrevocable guarantee over payments on the subordinated notes.   
 
The interest payable on the secured notes as at 31 March 2012 amounted to $5.2 million (2011: $3.5 million) and 
is included in “Accrued Interest Payable”.   

 
 

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000
15. Bonds and commercial papers

Domestic commercial paper 596,842                 518,153               
Euro commercial paper 783,596                 443,524               
Medium term note 2,637,403              3,649,602            

4,017,841              4,611,279            

Maturity analysis

Not longer than 3 months 1,263,360              1,251,853            
Longer than 3 months and not longer than 12 months 968,080                 1,320,095            
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 1,699,682              1,927,474            
Longer than 5 years 86,719                   111,857               

4,017,841              4,611,279            

 
 

Holders of any outstanding bonds, debentures, notes and other investment securities and commercial papers 

summarised in the tables above have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by Japanese law, one 

between Toyota Motor Corporation and Toyota Financial Services Corporation dated 14 July 2000, and the other 

between Toyota Financial Services Corporation and the company dated 7 August 2000. 
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

16. Deferred tax liabilities

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Deferred fees and commissions 42,711              55,058              

Investments accounted for using the equity method 1,116                1,431                

Assets financed under lease 31,274              39,819              

Sundry items 4,773                461                   
79,874              96,769              

 
 

17. Other liabilities

Unearned warranty revenue 1,854                1,872                
Employee entitlements 6,083                5,308                
Accrued interest payable 40,267              56,015              
Amounts payable to related entities 245,494            134,796            
Accounts payable & accrued expenses 37,558              66,352              
Other 36,705              44,047              

367,961            308,390            

Number of employees at end of reporting period 461 436

 
 
18. Contributed equity

Ordinary shares fully paid 120,000            120,000            

(a) Ordinary shares

At 31 March 2012 there were 120,000,000 ordinary shares fully paid.

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company in 

proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. 

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one 

vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000
19. Reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at 1 April (8,174)              (5,633)              
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign associate entity 3,566                (2,541)              
Balance at 31 March (4,608)              (8,174)              

(a) Foreign currency translation reserve
Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign entity accounted for using the equity method are taken to 

the foreign currency translation reserve, as described in note 1(c).  The reserve is recognised in profit and loss 

when the net investment is disposed of.

 
 
 
20. Retained Earnings

Balance at 1 April 529,066            466,413            

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 85,340              91,943              

Total available for appropriation to owners of the parent 614,406            558,356            

Dividends provided for or paid (30,707)            (29,290)            

Balance at 31 March 583,699            529,066            

Dividends

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011 of 17.5 cents (31 March 

2010 - 24.4 cents) per fully paid share.
Fully franked based on tax paid at @ 30% 21,033              29,290              

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of 8.1 cents (31 March 

2011 - 0 cents) per fully paid share.
Fully franked based on tax paid at @ 30% 9,674                -                       

Total dividends provided for or paid 30,707              29,290              

 
 

Under the income tax consolidation regime, the franking account balance of the company as at 1 April 2003 was 
permanently transferred to the Head Entity of the consolidated tax group. The company ceases to have a franking 
account during the time it remains a member of the consolidated group. 

 

The income tax consolidation rules do permit the company to pay a franked dividend to its shareholder with the 
Head Entity’s franking account bearing a reduction for the franking credit attached to the dividend. Dividends paid 
during the year ended 31 March 2012 were fully franked. 
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$ $
21. Auditor's remuneration

During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided 

by the auditor of the parent entity, its related practices and non-related audit 

firms:

PricewaterhouseCoopers - Australian firm
Audit or review of the financial reports 456,856            323,640            
Other audit-related work 156,184            200,619            
Total audit and other assurance services 613,040            524,259            

Taxation 28,898              32,079              
Total remuneration 641,938            556,338            

Related practices of PricewaterhouseCoopers-Australian firm (including 

overseas PricewaterhouseCoopers firms)
Other assurance services 68,355              157,893            
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Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

22. Cash flow information

Reconciliation of net cash flows from

operating activities to operating profit

after income tax

Operating profit after tax 85,340              91,943              

Share of profit of associates (7,262)              (7,811)              

Depreciation and amortisation 8,086                4,176                

Impairment losses 1                       546                   

Amortisation - Upfront receipts 14,248              12,936              

Amortisation - Prepaid expense 7,357                6,410                

Net (gain) on sale of non-current assets (6,543)              (3,517)              

Net loss/(gain) on translation of foreign currency debt 64,073              (261,290)          

Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financial instruments at fair value through 

profit or loss (32,332)            268,886            

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) in loans and receivables (1,499,765)       (1,392,362)       

Increase in provision for doubtful debts 15,725              21,669              

(Increase) in deferred tax asset (16,348)            (25,694)            

Decrease/(increase) in current assets 14,435              (11,115)            

(Increase)/decrease in provision for deferred income tax liability (16,895)            29,627              

Increase in income tax payable 31,029              26,064              

Increase in current liabilities 28,542              21,101              

(1,310,309)       (1,218,431)       

 
 
 
23. Lease commitments

Operating leases
Aggregate amount contracted but not provided for in the accounts
are as follows:
-  Premises 10,766              18,571              

Due within one year 3,500                4,276                
Due within one to five years 7,266                11,603              
Due over five years -                       2,692                

10,766              18,571              

The company leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within one to six years.  The 

leases have varying terms, escalations clauses and renewal rights.  On renewal, the terms of the leases are 

renegotiated.
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24. Capital Commitments

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of each reporting period but not 

recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Intangible assets 2,515                12,629              

 
 

25. Credit commitments 
 

The company and its controlled entities have outstanding commitments to extend credit in the normal course of 
business which are not reflected in the financial statements. 

 
Outstanding credit commitments provided to customers currently undrawn are as follows: 

 

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Term loans 192,354            150,854            
Bailment stock 413,339            465,904            
Fleet facilities 1,265,743         787,571            
Total 1,871,436         1,404,329         
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26. Subsidiaries

Country of Class of

Name of entity incorporation shares

2012 2011

% %

TFA (Wholesale) Pty. Limited* Australia Ordinary 100          100          

Southern Cross Toyota 2009-1 Trust** Australia Ordinary 100          100          

Southern Cross Toyota 2011-1 Trust** Australia Ordinary 100          100          

King Koala TFA 2012-1 Trust** Australia Ordinary 100          -   

Southern Cross Toyota 2012-1 Trust** Australia Ordinary 100          -   

*Investment value of $2 has been rounded to nil.

**Investment value of $10 has been rounded to nil.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities, and results of the following subsidiaries in 

accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1(b):

Ownership interest

*This subsidiary has been granted relief from the necessity to prepare financial statements in accordance with Class 

Order 98/1418 issued by the Australian Securities and Investment Commission.  For further information refer to note 33.

The proportion of the ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.
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27. Related party transactions  
 

(a) Entities in the wholly owned group 
         The ultimate Australian parent entity is Toyota Finance Australia Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of 

Toyota Financial Services Corporation, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the ultimate parent entity, 
Toyota Motor Corporation incorporated in Japan. 

 

(b)  Subsidiaries 
       Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 26. 
 

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

($) ($)
(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits 4,337,233            3,788,011            
Share-based payments -                           13,120                 
Other long term benefits 12,229                 -                           
Termination benefits -                           550,617               

4,349,462            4,351,748            

 Loans to key management personnel

       Details of loans made to directors and other key management personnel of the company are set out below.  
 

At 31

March
Amount

Outstanding

Balance
Terms Avg Rate LVR Security

2012 2,603,024$      2,595,857$    
30 years,

variable
6.89%

Not greater 

than 120%

Secured by 1st mortgages 

over the loan property.

2011 2,603,024$      2,599,104$    
30 years,
variable

6.99%
Not greater 
than 120%

Secured by 1st mortgages 
over the loan property.

 
No write-downs or allowance for doubtful debts were recognised on the key management personnel loans in 31 
March 2012 and 2011. 
 

(d) Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are set out below.  These are included in the company's Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income and Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for the period.

 Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011
$'000 $'000

Net Financing Margin

Affiliate subvention income 31,259 10,462
Affiliate share of government grants and incentives -                           (1,168)                  
Interest expense on loans from affiliated entity 294                      -                           
Credit support fees paid to parent entity (2,767) (2,620)

Expenses

Marketing expenses paid to affiliates 16,155 7,500
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27. Related party transactions (continued) 
 
(d) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011
$'000 $'000

Assets

Loans and receivables

  Deferred retail subvention income from affiliates* (74,616) (49,062)
Other assets

  Accounts receivable from affiliates* 26,311                 34,235                 

Liabilities

Interest bearing loans payable to affiliates 528,999               -                           
Non-interest bearing loans payable to affiliates* 32,625                 25,212                 
Accounts payable to affiliates* 211,539               108,328               
Accounts payable to parent entity* 1,330                   1,256                   
Total Liabilities 774,493               134,796               

* Non-interest bearing

No bad debts expense and allowance for doubtful debts were recognised in relation to any receivable due from 

related parties in 31 March 2012 and 2011.

 

28. Financial Risk Management 
 

The consolidated entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, 
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The consolidated entity’s overall risk management 
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to manage potential adverse effects on the 
financial performance of the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity does not enter into or trade financial 
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments 
are used to manage the consolidated entity’s exposure to currency risk and interest rate risk. 
 
Risk management is carried out by various committees and departments based on charters or policies approved by 
senior management in accordance with the company’s Enterprise Risk Management Framework. These include: 
 
Pricing Committee 

The Pricing Committee meets to actively assess new business margins in connection with volume and interest rate 
requirements, and a changing interest rate and competitor environment. 
 
Asset and Liability Committee 

An Asset and Liability Committee meets to proactively and collaboratively manage and monitor the interest rate 
and liquidity risks of the consolidated entity. The consolidated entity’s Treasury department identifies, evaluates 
and hedges financial risks. The Treasury department implements the consolidated entity’s policies to manage the 
consolidated entity’s foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk with financial intermediaries, and liquidity 
risk. 
 
Credit Risk Committee 

The Credit Risk Committee is responsible for identifying, evaluating and managing the consolidated entity’s credit 
risk. The role of Credit Risk Committee is to ensure that the consolidated entity’s business has a sound risk strategy 
consistent with corporate goals, which is applied by competent sales people using appropriately documented, 
robust policy and procedures. 
 
Internal Audit 

Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the consolidated entity’s activities and providing reasonable assurance 
to the executive committee of the adequacy of the control environment and risk management within its operations. 
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28. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 
Senior management and the consolidated entity’s shareholder, where applicable, provide written principles for 
overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate 
risk, and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and 
investment of excess liquidity. 

 

(a) Market risk 
 
(i) Foreign exchange risk 

The consolidated entity operates in international capital markets to obtain debt funding to support its earning 
assets. Transactions may be denominated in foreign currencies, exposing the consolidated entity to foreign 
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures. 
 
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currency that is not the entity’s 
functional currency and net investments in foreign operations. The risk is measured using debt maturity analysis. 
 
Management has set up a policy requiring the consolidated entity to manage its foreign exchange risk against their 
functional currency. The consolidated entity is required to hedge 100% of its foreign exchange risk at the time of 
debt issuances. Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to hedge its exposure to 
foreign currency risk, including: 
 

• Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk arising on the issue of commercial 
paper in foreign currencies; and 

• Cross currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with foreign currency 
denominated medium term notes. 

 
The consolidated entity’s net exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period ending 31 March 
2012 is immaterial. There has been no change in this position when compared to the reporting period ending 31 
March 2011. 
 

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The consolidated entity is exposed to the effects of 
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates as it borrows and lends funds at both floating and fixed 
rates. Derivative financial instruments are entered into by the consolidated entity to economically hedge its 
exposure to cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, including: 
 

• Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity’s 
earning assets.  Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting loans and receivables from 
fixed rates to floating rates. 

• Fixed-to-floating interest rate swaps to manage the interest rate risk generated by the consolidated entity’s 
functional currency denominated fixed rate medium term notes. Such interest rate swaps have the economic 
effect of converting borrowings from fixed rates to floating rates; and 

• Cross currency swaps to manage the foreign currency and interest rate risk associated with foreign currency 
denominated medium term notes. Such cross currency swaps have the economic effect of converting 
borrowings from foreign denominated fixed or floating rates to functional currency floating rates. 

 
Under the interest rate swaps, the consolidated entity agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals 
(mainly quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates, and floating rate interest amounts calculated by 
reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. Under the cross currency swaps, the consolidated entity agrees 
with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals, foreign currency principal and fixed rate interest amounts, 
and functional currency principal and floating rate interest amounts calculated with reference to the agreed 
functional currency principal amount.  
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28.   Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(a) Market risk (continued) 
 
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued) 

 
The consolidated entity’s policy is to maintain most of its debt exposure in functional currency at floating rate, 
using interest rate swaps or cross currency swaps to achieve this when necessary. The consolidated entity’s policy 
is to maintain between 20% and 50% of its loans and receivables funded at floating rate, using interest rate swaps 
to achieve this when necessary. 
 

The following table details the consolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period. 
 

Weighted Variable Non Total

31 March 2012 Average Interest Less than 1 to 5 Over 5 Interest

Interest Rate 1 year years years Bearing

Rate % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets

Other assets - -                     -                    -                    -                    30,410           30,410           

Cash and liquid assets 4.8% 179,200         -                    -                    -                    -                    179,200         

Loans and receivables 8.6% 2,669,105      2,418,210      5,542,663      210,343         -                    10,840,321    

Hedge swaps - 6,664,000      (2,740,000)    (3,924,000)    -                    -                    -                    

Total financial assets 9,512,305      (321,790)       1,618,663      210,343         30,410           11,049,931    

Financial Liabilities

Other liabilities - -                     -                    -                    -                    366,108         366,108         

Banks & other financial institutions 5.2% 5,115,845      -                    -                    -                    -                    5,115,845      

Loans from related company 4.5% 528,999         528,999         

Commercial paper 4.5% 1,380,438      -                    -                    -                    -                    1,380,438      

Medium term notes 4.9% -                     851,002         1,699,682      86,719           -                    2,637,403      

Cross currency swaps - 1,196,304      (541,401)       (561,908)       (92,995)         -                    -                    

Interest rate swaps - 1,438,800      (316,000)       (1,122,800)    -                    -                    -                    

Total financial liabilities 9,660,386      (6,399)           14,974           (6,276)           366,108         10,028,793    

Net financial assets (148,081)        (315,391)       1,603,689      216,619         (335,698)       1,021,138      

Fixed Interest Rate

 
 
 

Weighted Variable Non Total

31 March 2011 Average Interest Less than 1 to 5 Over 5 Interest

Interest Rate 1 year years years Bearing

Rate % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets

Other assets - -                     -                    -                    -                    44,845           44,845           

Cash and liquid assets 4.7% 946,999         -                    -                    -                    -                    946,999         

Loans and receivables 8.1% 2,275,950      2,115,572      4,822,822      119,669         -                    9,334,013      

Hedge swaps - 5,437,000      (2,530,000)    (2,907,000)    -                    -                    -                    

Total financial assets 8,659,949      (414,428)       1,915,822      119,669         44,845           10,325,857    

Financial Liabilities

Other liabilities - -                     -                    -                    -                    306,519         306,519         

Banks & other financial institutions 5.8% 4,133,107      -                    -                    -                    -                    4,133,107      

Loans from related company - -                    

Commercial paper 5.0% 961,677         -                    -                    -                    -                    961,677         

Medium term notes 5.4% 19,346           1,610,271      1,908,128      111,857         -                    3,649,602      

Cross currency swaps - 1,912,943      (852,803)       (937,277)       (122,863)       -                    -                    

Interest rate swaps - 1,959,400      (904,000)       (1,055,400)    -                    -                    -                    

Total financial liabilities 8,986,473      (146,532)       (84,549)         (11,006)         306,519         9,050,905      

Net financial assets (326,524)        (267,896)       2,000,371      130,675         (261,674)       1,274,952      

 Fixed Interest Rate 
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28. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(a) Market risk (continued)  
 
(iii) Value at risk 

 
The consolidated entity applies a ‘value at risk’ methodology (VAR) to its portfolio, to estimate the market risk of 
positions held and the maximum losses expected, based upon a number of assumptions for various changes in 
market conditions. The consolidated entity’s shareholder sets limits on the value of risk that may be accepted. 
 
VAR is a statistically based estimate of the potential losses on the current portfolio from adverse market 
movements. It expresses the ‘maximum’ amount the consolidated entity may lose, but only to a certain level of 
confidence (95%). The VAR model assumes a certain ‘holding period’ until positions can be closed (30 days). It 
also assumes that market moves occurring over this holding period will follow a similar pattern to those that have 
occurred over a 1 year (365 day) period in the past. The consolidated entity’s assessment of past movements is 
based on daily market data for the past 1 year. The consolidated entity applies these historical changes in rates 
directly to its current positions – a deterministic method called parametric VAR.  
 
The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant market 
movements. 
 
The following table summarises the consolidated entity’s value at risk as a percentage of equity.  
 

12 months to 31 March 2012 12 months to 31 March 2011 
 Average High Low Average High Low 

       
Interest rate risk 4.05 4.71 

 
3.21 3.90 5.93 

 
1.40 

 
 
(b) Credit risk 

 
The consolidated entity takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will cause a financial 
loss for the consolidated entity by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit exposures arise principally in lending 
activities that lead to loans and receivables, and treasury funding activities such as cash and cash equivalents, 
deposits with banks and financial institutions and derivative financial instruments. 
 

(i) Loans and receivables 
 
The consolidated entity’s loans and receivables portfolio is exposed to two primary operating segments: retail and 
wholesale. 
 
Retail 

The retail portfolio is the largest operating segment. It comprises a range of loans and receivables from individual 
consumers and small business, through to fleet business consisting of medium to large commercial clients and 
government bodies. 
 
Credit risk arising from individual consumers and small business is managed through the application of credit 
scoring and manual underwriting to identify and evaluate acceptable risks and portfolio diversification both 
demographically and geographically. Credit risk arising from fleet clients is managed by imposition and review (at 
a minimum annually) of credit limits to ensure fleet clients have the capacity to settle financial commitments.  
Collateral is also used to secure funds advanced. The principal collateral types are: 

• In the case of term purchase and finance lease products, retain title of the leased vehicle until final settlement 
under the terms of the agreement; 

• Charges over vehicles or real estate property in the case of loan products. 
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28. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(b) Credit risk (continued) 
 

Repossessed vehicles are sold using various channels as soon as practicable, with the proceeds used to reduce the 
outstanding indebtedness. 
 
Retail loans and receivables are analysed below. 

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Past due loans and receivables:

    1-14 Days 657,471               616,672            

    15-30 Days 164,546               280,469            

    31-60 Days 123,208               164,432            

    61-90 Days 60,561                 26,796              

    90+ Days 166,833               38,445              

Total 1,172,619 1,126,814

Past due loans and receivables include unimpaired and impaired loans and receivables.

Below is the value of impaired loans and receivables included in past due loans and receivables.

Impaired past due loans and receivables 193,873               187,913            

Fair value of collateral related to impaired past due loans and 

receivables 82,457                 90,222              

 
 
Wholesale 

The wholesale portfolio includes floor plan finance for new and used motor vehicles to approved motor vehicle 
dealers under either: 

• Bailment facilities, where motor vehicles are bailed (and are in the possession for sale) to a motor vehicle 
dealer by TFA who retains ownership of the motor vehicles until sold to a customer; or a  

• Revolving Line of Credit, whereby motor vehicles held for resale by a motor vehicle dealer are secured by 
TFA under a General Security Agreement. 

 
In addition to the floor plan facilities, the wholesale portfolio also represents loans for dealership properties and 
premises along with working capital loans with these loans typically secured by real estate mortgages and general 
security agreements. 
 
Due to the nature of these facilities there is a concentration in the motor vehicle dealership industry, with the risk 
spread across market locations throughout Australia. In addition to the collateral security obtained credit risk is 
managed through regular auditing of the dealerships vehicle inventory, monthly monitoring of financial 
performance and ongoing annual reviews. 
 
The concentration of credit risk in relation to these two operating segments is reflected in the note 29 segment 
reporting. 
 

(ii) Treasury funding activities 
 
The consolidated entity’s Treasury Department manages credit risk through the use of external rating such as 
Standard and Poor’s rating or equivalents, counterparty diversification, monitoring of counterparty financial 
condition and ensuring master netting agreements are in place with all derivative counterparties.   
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28.  Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(b) Credit risk (continued) 
 
The below table shows the percentage of the consolidated entity’s money market deposits and derivatives relating 
to treasury funding activities, based on the Standard & Poor’s rating. 
 
 
 
Rating 

Consolidated 
2012 

% 

Consolidated 
2011 

% 
   
AAA - - 
AA+ - - 
AA 42 37 
AA-  6  6 
A+ 42 47 
A- 3 3 
A 7 7 

 100 100 
 

 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period, without taking into account collateral 
obtained, is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts or impairment, of each financial asset, 
including derivative financial instruments, in the statement of financial position. 
 

 

(c) Liquidity risk  
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the consolidated entity is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be 
failure to meet obligations to repay creditors and fulfil commitments to lend. The consolidated entity, in the normal 
course of business, requires substantial funding to support the level of its earning assets and working capital 
requirements, consequently is exposed to liquidity risk. 
 
The liquidity management process carried out by Treasury includes: 

• Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This 
includes planning replenishment of funds before they mature or/and borrowed by customers. The 
consolidated entity maintains an active presence in domestic and international capital markets to enable this 
to happen; 

• Monitoring the concentration and profile of debt maturities; 

• Maintaining backup lines in the form of committed and uncommitted facilities. 
 
The consolidated entity utilises the following financing arrangements to met liquidity requirements and therefore 
manage liquidity risk. The table below illustrates the commercial paper, medium term notes and bank facilities to 
which the consolidated entity had access at the end of each reporting period. 
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28.   Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Entities in the consolidated entity have access to commercial paper, medium 

term notes and bank loan facilities:

Total facilities

Commercial paper, medium term note and bank loan 13,827,333          15,065,000       

Amount of  facilities used 7,464,986            8,744,387         

Amount of  facilities unused 6,362,347            6,320,613         

 
 
 
Bank overdraft  
The bank overdraft is an unsecured $4 million (2011: $4 million) facility. Interest is charged at prevailing market 
rates. Bank overdraft is payable on demand and subject to annual review. 
 
Money Market facilities 
The company has access to both $0.67 billion committed and $0.76 billion uncommitted money market facilities 
totalling $1.43 billion (2011: $1.17 billion) provided by various financial institutions. 
 
Uncommitted facilities 

Financial institutions providing uncommitted facilities are not obligated to extend funds to the company. Funds 
extended under the terms of uncommitted facilities may be recalled by the financial institution on demand. 
 
Committed facilities 

Committed facilities may be utilised on demand where the terms of the facility agreement are satisfied. Financial 
institutions may recall funds only on maturity of the instrument issued under the terms of the committed facility. 
 
Interest on money market facilities is charged at prevailing rates. The weighted average interest rate as at 31 March 
2012 is nil% (2011: nil%). 
 
All money market facilities are subject to annual review. 
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28. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

Medium term note and commercial paper programs 
Medium term notes and commercial paper programs allow the company to issue medium term notes and 
commercial paper in either Australian or overseas markets up to a total of $13.9 billion (2011: $13.9 billion). 
Subject to meeting conditions prescribed in the program documentation, the company can issue commercial paper 
and medium term notes to purchasers at any time. 
 
Medium term notes and commercial paper are issued at prevailing market rates. The weighted average interest rate 
as at 31 March 2012 for medium term notes is 4.9% (2011: 5.4%) and for commercial paper is 4.5% (2011: 5.0%). 
 

Credit Support Agreement 
Holders of debt securities issued by the company may have the benefit of Credit Support Agreements governed by 
Japanese law, one between Toyota Motor Corporation (“TMC”) and Toyota Financial Services Corporation 
(“TFSC”) dated 14 July 2000, and the other between TFSC and the Company date 7 August 2000 (together, the 
“Credit Support Agreements”).   
 
Securities with respect to which a Trustee is appointed 

The Trustee, Union Bank of California N.A., will have the right to claim in favour of the holders of such securities 
directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective obligations under the Credit Support Agreements by 
making a written claim together with a declaration to the effect that such holders will have recourse to the rights 
given under the Credit Support Agreements. If TFSC and/or TMC receive such a claim from the Trustee, TFSC 
and/or TMC shall indemnify, without further action or formality, the holders against any loss or damage resulting 
from the failure of TFSC and/or TMC to perform any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support 
Agreements. The Trustee may then enforce the indemnity directly against TFSC and/or TMC in favour of such 
holders. If the Trustee, having become bound to proceed directly against TFSC and/or TMC, fails to do so within a 
reasonable period thereafter to protect the interests of the holders of such securities, and such failure shall be 
continuing, the holders of such securities may themselves take the actions mentioned above. 
 
Securities with respect to which a Trustee is not appointed 

Holders of such securities will have the right to claim directly against TFSC and TMC to perform their respective 
obligations under the Credit Support Agreements by making a written claim together with a declaration to the effect 
that the holder will have recourse to rights given under the Credit Support Agreements. If TFSC and/or TMC 
receive such a claim from any holder of such securities, TFSC and/or TMC shall indemnify, without any further 
action or formality, the holder against any loss or damage resulting from the failure of TFSC and/or TMC to 
perform any of their respective obligations under the Credit Support Agreements. The holder of such securities who 
made the claim may then enforce the indemnity directly against TFSC and/or TMC. 
 
In consideration for the Credit Support Agreements, a Credit Support Fee Agreement was entered into between 
TFSC and the company as at 30 March 2001. The Credit Support Fee Agreement provides that the company will 
pay to TFSC a fee equivalent to a percentage of the weighted average outstanding amount of the company’s 
medium term notes and commercial paper that have the benefit of the Credit Support Agreements. 
 
The directors are not aware of any instances of written claim and declaration under the terms of the Credit Support 
Agreements, in connection with the company’s outstanding medium term notes and commercial paper. 
 
The table below presents the consolidated entity’s financial liabilities, net and gross settled derivative financial 
instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at reporting date to the contractual 
maturity. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. For interest rate swaps 
the cash flows have been estimated using the forward interest rates applicable at the end of each reporting period. 
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28. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

<1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
31 March 2012 Month Months Months Years Years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-derivatives

Banks & other financial 

institutions 113,535     466,365       729,848        2,775,362     2,312,070    6,397,180      

Bonds & commercial paper 416,329     890,854       1,086,263     2,114,829     147,952       4,656,227      

Total non derivatives 529,864     1,357,219    1,816,111     4,890,191     2,460,022    11,053,407    

Derivatives

Forward Foreign Exchange 

Contracts

  - bought currency (297,148)    (573,344)      (117,170)       -                    -                   (987,662)        

  - sold currency 294,699     567,504       116,632        -                    -                   978,835         

Interest Rate Swaps 675            (1,630)          (4,735)           (10,779)         -                   (16,469)          

Cross Currency Swaps
  - Pay leg 6,824         28,003         1,131,061     1,698,586     97,355         2,961,829      
  - Receive leg (169)           (12,469)        (1,009,446)    (1,475,353)    (91,744)        (2,589,181)     

Total derivatives 4,881         8,064           116,342        212,454        5,611           347,352         
Total 534,745     1,365,283    1,932,453     5,102,645     2,465,633    11,400,759     
 

<1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5
31 March 2011 Month Months Months Years Years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Non-derivatives

Banks & other financial 

institutions 10,259       26,985         116,059        3,048,760     1,364,281    4,566,344      

Bonds & commercial paper 427,456     867,757       1,447,940     2,112,502     121,348       4,977,003      

Total non derivatives 437,715     894,742       1,563,999     5,161,262     1,485,629    9,543,347      

Derivatives

Forward Foreign Exchange 

Contracts

  - bought currency (97,456)      (96,731)        -                    -                    -                   (194,187)        

  - sold currency 99,822       99,985         -                    -                    -                   199,807         

Interest Rate Swaps 8,233         4,265           (19,177)         5,699            -                   (980)               

Cross Currency Swaps
  - Pay leg 12,258       438,981       589,630        3,181,894     135,900       4,358,663      
  - Receive leg -                 (318,168)      (472,188)       (2,631,381)    (121,348)      (3,543,085)     

Total derivatives 22,857       128,332       98,265          556,212        14,552         820,218         
Total 460,572     1,023,074    1,662,264     5,717,474     1,500,181    10,363,565     
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28. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

(c)   Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

        Securitisation 

 

Consolidated Consolidated

2012 2011

$'000 $'000

Entities in the consolidated entity have access to securitisation facilities:

Total facilities 4,000,000 2,000,000

Amount of  facilities used 2,234,770 1,382,911

Amount of  facilities unused 1,765,230 617,089

          
 
The company transfers specific term loans to consolidated special purpose entities in the form of a securitisation 
transaction. As at 31 March 2012 the consolidated special purpose entities issued $1,885.9 million and $348.8 
million in senior and subordinated notes, respectively (2011: $1,151.3m and $231.6m respectively). The company 
provides a guarantee and indemnity on the subordinated notes. 
 
The second special purpose entity (Southern Cross Toyota 2011-1 Trust) established on a committed basis in 
March 2011 to support future securitisation programs remains undrawn as at 31 March 2012. The facility limit for 
this particular trust is $300 million. 
 
Two further special purpose entities (Southern Cross Toyota 2012-1 Trust, King Koala TFA 2012-1 Trust) were 
established on an uncommitted basis in March 2012 to support future securitisation programs. These are partly 
drawn as at 31 March 2012. 
           
As at 31 March 2012, uncommitted and committed facilities amounted to $3.7 billion and $0.3 billion respectively 
(2011: $1.7 billion and $0.3 billion). 
 
 

 (d)   Fair value measurements 
 
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for 
disclosure purposes. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter 
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The consolidated entity uses methods and makes assumptions 
that are based on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. Estimated discounted cash flows are 
used to determine fair value for financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using 
forward exchange market rates at the end of each reporting period. 
 
The table below summarises the carrying amounts and the fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not 
presented on the consolidated entity’s balance sheet at fair value. 
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28.   Financial Risk Management (continued)  
 
(d)   Fair value estimation (continued) 

 

2012 2012 2011 2011

Carrying

Amount

Fair

Value

Carrying

Amount

Fair

Value

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets

Loans and receivables 10,694,462       10,860,962             9,203,879         9,293,049         

10,694,462       10,860,962             9,203,879         9,293,049         

Financial Liabilities

Due to other financial institutions 5,644,844         5,437,227               4,133,107         4,084,525         

Bonds and commercial paper 4,017,841         4,096,845               4,611,279         4,705,305         

9,662,685         9,534,072               8,744,386         8,789,830         

Consolidated Consolidated

 
 
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their 
short term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future 
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the group for similar financial 
instruments. The fair value of current borrowings approximates the carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is 
not significant. 

 
(e)   Fair value hierarchy 
 

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels are 
defined as follows: 

 
  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)  
  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

 
The consolidated entity’s financial instruments that are measured and recognised at fair value are derivative assets 
and derivative liabilities used for hedging (i.e., interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and forward foreign 
exchange contracts). 
  
The following table presents the consolidated entity’s financial asset and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 
March 2012 and 31 March 2011. 
 
 At 31 March 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Balance

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Derivative financial assets 

through profit or loss

Derivative used for economic hedging -                   57,506 -                   57,506
 

Derivative financial liabilities  

through profit or loss  

Derivative used for economic hedging -                   341,293 -                   341,293

 At 31 March 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Balance

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Derivative financial assets 

through profit or loss

Derivative used for economic hedging -                   19,135 -                   19,135

Derivative financial liabilities 

through profit or loss

Derivative used for economic hedging -                   587,239 -                   587,239  
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29.   Segment Reporting 
 

Retail finance Wholesale finance Consolidated

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Revenue

Segment revenue from external customers            680,529 579,914           143,837           140,742           824,366           720,656           

Total revenue 824,366           720,656           

Result

Segment result 168,678           134,573           20,096             22,488             188,774           157,061           

Share of net profit of equity accounted investments 7,262               7,811               

Unallocated net expenses (80,447)            (41,648)            

Profit before income tax 115,589           123,224           

Income tax expense (30,249)            (31,281)            

Profit attributable to owners of the parent 85,340             91,943             

Net profit arrived at after charging the following items:

- Depreciation 2,050               1,090               8                      -                       2,058               1,090               

- Amortisation 6,028               3,085               -                       1                      6,028               3,086               

- Impairment losses - computer software 

  development 1                      546                  -                       -                       1                      546                  

- Impairment of loans and receivables 37,863             43,050             5,000               1,284               42,863             44,334             

- Other non-cash expenses 38,743             36,259             -                       -                       38,743             36,259             

Retail finance Wholesale finance Consolidated

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

$000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000

Assets

Segment assets 8,016,003        7,007,974        2,735,965        2,237,733        10,751,968      9,245,707        

Equity accounted investments 51,754             50,600             

Unallocated assets 347,182           1,081,369        

Total assets 11,150,904      10,377,676      

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 7,213,449        6,636,031        2,790,530        2,833,442        10,003,978      9,469,473        

Unallocated liabilities 447,835           267,311           

Total liabilities 10,451,813      9,736,784        

Acquisitions of non-current assets 17,092             14,176             -                       -                       17,092             14,176             

Management has determined the operating segments based on reports reviewed by the board of directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The board considers the business from a product perspective and has identified two operating segments. Retail finance is comprised of loans and leases to personal and 

commercial customers. Wholesale finance is comprised of loans and bailment facilities to motor vehicle dealerships. The company's business segments operate in 

Australasia. 

Profit & Loss

Balance Sheet
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30. Subsequent events  
 
 The directors are not aware of any other matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in the report or financial 

statements that has significantly or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of 
those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in subsequent financial years. 
 

31.     Financial Guarantee 
 
           In relation to the securitisation of term receivables, the company has provided a financial guarantee in respect of           

the subordinated notes issued by each special purpose vehicle. The financial guarantees are unsecured. 
 
           Exposure to a loss in the event of non-performance by a special purpose vehicle is limited to amounts payable 

under the subordinated notes and the governing facility agreement.   
 

No provision was recognised by the company on the financial guarantees as at the end of the reporting period as 
the likelihood of a claim under a guarantee is remote. 

 
32. Contingent liabilities 
 

The company, as a member of the Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited GST Group (GST Group), is 
jointly and severally liable for 100% of the goods and services tax (GST) payable by the GST Group. The GST 
Group had a net GST payable as at 31 March 2012 of $44.2 million (31 March 2011: $41.1 million). 
 
The company, in association with other Australian incorporated entities with a common owner, implemented the 
income tax consolidation legislation from 1 April 2003 with Toyota Motor Corporation Australia Limited as the 
Head Entity. Under the income tax consolidation legislation, income tax consolidation entities are jointly and 
severally liable for the income tax liability of the consolidated income tax group unless an income tax sharing 
agreement has been entered into by member entities. At the date of signing this financial report an income tax 
sharing agreement has been executed. The directors believe the assets of the Head Entity are sufficient to meet 
the income tax liabilities as they fall due. 

 
The range of Toyota Extra Care warranty contracts, offered by the company since August 2003, provide an 
extended warranty to the customer in exchange for an upfront premium payment. The risk of claims has been 
fully insured with third party insurers. The directors consider the insurance of risk is sufficient to meet any claims 
which may eventuate.    

 
A fully maintained operating lease is offered under the company’s current portfolio of products. Fully maintained 
operating leases require the company to provide agreed services at the company’s expense. Monthly rental 
includes a pre-determined charge for such services. The actual cost of such services is expensed periodically 
during the term of the leases and recognised in the income statement in reference to the stage of completion 
method. 
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33. Deed of cross guarantee  

 
Toyota Finance Australia Limited and TFA (Wholesale) Pty Limited are parties to a deed of cross guarantee 

under which each company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned 

entities have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and a directors’ report under Class 

Order 98/1418 (as amended by Class Order 98/2017, 00/0321, 01/1087, 02/0248 and 02/1017) issued by the 

Australian Securities and Investments Commission. 

 

The above companies represent a “Closed Group” for the purposes of the Class Order, and as there are no other 

parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee that are controlled by Toyota Finance Australia Limited, they also 

represent the “Extended Closed Group”. 

. 

The consolidated financial statements cover the entities which are parties to the deed of cross guarantee.  

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements reflect the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 

and consolidated balance sheet, comprising the company and the controlled entities which are a party to the 

Deed, after eliminating all transactions between the parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 31 March 2012. 
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3. Responsibility Statement

The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge:

(a) the financial statements and notes set out in the Annual Financial Report are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations
2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

(ii) giving a true and fair view of TFA s and the Group s financial position
as at 31 March 2012 and of its performance, as represented by the results
of its operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on that date;

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that TFA will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable; and

(c) the management report set out on pages 1 to 30 includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of TFA and the
Group,  together  with  a  description  of  the  principal  risks  and  uncertainties  that
they face.


